
 

 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

To the Board of Directors of Great Eastern Energy Corporation Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements     

Opinion 
 

We have audited the financial statements of Great Eastern Energy Corporation Limited (“the Company”), which 

comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2022, and the statement of profit or  loss and other 

comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 

notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.    

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 

Company as at March 31, 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by International Accounting 

Standards Board (‘IASB’). 

Basis for Opinion 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities 

under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 

Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International 

Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together 

with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in India, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.   

 

 

Key Audit Matters   
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 

the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 

financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 

these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that 

context. 

 

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 

statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.  Accordingly, our audit included the 

performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the 

matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements. 

 

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

(a) Estimation of Gas Reserves (as described in note 2.2 of the financial statements) 

The estimation of gas reserves and resources 

is a significant area of judgement due to the 

technical uncertainty in assessing quantities. 

Reserves and resources are key inputs for 

calculation of depletion and also, it’s a 

fundamental indicator of the future potential 

of the Company’s performance. 

Our work included following procedures: 

 We have assessed the competence and objectivity of the 

experts that they were qualified to carry out the volume’s 

estimation. 

 Through inquiries and reading of reports, We have 

understood that the Guidelines and methodology used by 

the expert to estimate the reserves e with the relevant 

industry practices. 

 We  assessed that the updated reserves and resources 

estimates were included in the Company’s consideration 

of impairment assessment and in accounting for 



 

 

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

depletion, depreciation, and amortization. 

 Assessed the adequacy of disclosure made by the 

Company in the financial statements. 

 

 

Other Information included in the Company’s Annual Report for 2021-22 

Other information consists of the information included in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements 

and our auditor’s report thereon. Management is responsible for the other information. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 

assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 

doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 

performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements.   

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view in 

accordance with IFRSs and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 

as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 

of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 

realistic alternative but to do so.  

 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  

 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

Company’s internal control. 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by management.  

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 



 

 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 

the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 

cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 

fair presentation.  

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 

we identify during our audit.  

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 

most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 

matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 

about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

 

The partner in charge on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Pravin Tulsyan. 

 

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005 

 

 

 

Per Pravin Tulsyan 

Partner  

Membership No.: 108044 

UDIN: 22108044AMJOVE6452 

Place:  Gurugram 

Date: July 07, 2022  
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Statement of financial position

Note 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 4.1             126,442,605            136,683,681 

Right-of-use asset 4.2                1,251,032               1,378,217 

Capital work-in-progress (including Wells in progress) 5                7,383,345               7,780,454 

Intangible assets 6                     84,338                   96,075 

Prepayments 7                     66,093                   80,397 

Trade and other receivables 8                   146,853                  143,734 

Deferred tax asset (net) 16                   469,687               1,048,025 

Tax assets (net)                   411,407                   10,934 

Total non-current assets           136,255,360         147,221,517 

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 8                1,370,505               1,271,395 

Liquid investments 9a                5,633,109               6,014,361 

Prepayments 7                   103,610                  111,219 

Restricted deposits with banks 9b                1,640,107               1,654,037 

Cash and cash equivalents 10                     21,972                   37,886 

Total current assets              8,769,303             9,088,898 

Total assets           145,024,663         156,310,415 

Equity

Issued capital 11               13,306,007             13,306,007 

Share premium               91,006,858             91,006,858 

Reserves             (37,886,418)            (35,026,844)

Retained earnings               22,536,677             21,138,336 

            88,963,124           90,424,357 

Non-current Liabilities

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 12               44,790,453             51,498,429 

Employee benefit liabilities 13                   732,618                  581,338 

Provisions 15                   284,202                  275,543 

Total non-current liabilities             45,807,273           52,355,310 

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 12                5,789,858               9,079,209 

Trade and other payables 14                3,683,394               3,645,753 

Employee benefit liabilities 13                   781,014                  725,824 

Income tax payable (net)                             -                   79,962 

Total current liabilities             10,254,266           13,530,748 

Total liabilities             56,061,539           65,886,058 

Total equity and liabilities           145,024,663         156,310,415 

As at

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 

 

 On behalf of Board of Directors 

 

 

 

  

 Yogendra Kr. Modi Prashant Modi 

 Executive Chairman 
Managing Director & 
Chief Executive Officer 

 Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram 

 Date: July 7, 2022 Date: July 7,2022 
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Statement of profit or loss

31 March 31 March

Note 2022 2021

Revenue from operations 27 26,661,983     25,678,372     

Other income 17 501,271          621,687          

27,163,254   26,300,059   

Employee benefit expenses 18 (4,219,451)      (3,894,369)      

Other expenses 19 (9,100,515)      (8,758,649)      

Finance income 20 114,830          159,752          

Finance costs 21 (5,568,551)      (7,077,280)      

Depletion, depreciation and amortisation 4,6, 2.3 (f) (6,363,617)      (4,072,837)      

Exchange fluctuation gain / (loss) (net) 324,421          (795,624)         

(24,812,883)  (24,439,007)  

Profit before tax 2,350,371     1,861,052     

Income tax expense

Current tax 16 (395,668)         (186,362)         

Income tax for earlier years 16 (5,908)            (61,246)          

Deferred tax (expense)/income 16 (555,937)         (240,848)         

Profit for the year 1,392,858     1,372,596     

Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company 1,392,858     1,372,596     

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 22 0.02               0.02               

Diluted earnings per share 22 0.02               0.02               

For the year ended

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 

 

 On behalf of Board of Directors 

 

 

 

 

  

 Yogendra Kr. Modi Prashant Modi 

 Executive Chairman 
Managing Director & 
Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

Place: Gurugram 

 

Place: Gurugram  

 Date: July 7, 2022 Date: July 7,2022 
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Statement of other comprehensive income

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

Profit for the year 1,392,858     1,372,596     

Other comprehensive income/ (loss)

Remeasurements gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plan (76,196)          60,808            

22,188            (17,707)          

Foreign currency translation adjustment (2,800,083)      2,261,989       

(2,854,091)    2,305,090     

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax (1,461,233)    3,677,686     

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company (1,461,233)    3,677,686     

Tax on remeasurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit 

plan

Net other comprehensive income/ (loss) (net of tax):

For the year ended

(a) items not to be reclassified to statement of profit or

loss in subsequent periods:

(b) items to be reclassified to statement of profit or loss

in subsequent periods:

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 

 

 On behalf of Board of Directors 

 

 

 

 

  

 Yogendra Kr. Modi Prashant Modi 

 Executive Chairman 
Managing Director & 
Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

Place: Gurugram 

 

Place: Gurugram 

 Date: July 7, 2022 Date: July 7, 2022 
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Statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Issued 

capital

Securities 

premium

Retained 

Earnings

Foreign 

currency 

translation 

reserve

Debenture 

redemption 

reserve

Total 

equity

Balance as at 1 April 2021    13,306,007          91,006,858    21,138,336     (36,111,677)    1,084,833    90,424,357 

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year

Profit for the year                  -                         -        1,392,858                    -                  -        1,392,858 

Other comprehensive income/(loss)                  -                         -           (54,008)      (2,800,083)                -       (2,854,091)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year                  -                         -       1,338,850     (2,800,083)                -     (1,461,233)

Transfer from / (to) retained earnings                       -             59,491                    -         (59,491)                  -   

Balance as at 31 March 2022   13,306,007        91,006,858   22,536,677   (38,911,760)   1,025,342   88,963,124 

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 

 

 On behalf of Board of Directors 

 

 

 

 

  

 Yogendra Kr. Modi Prashant Modi 

 Executive Chairman 
Managing Director & 
Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

Place: Gurugram 

 

Place: Gurugram 

 Date: July 7, 2022 Date:  July 7, 2022 
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Statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Issued 

capital

Securities 

premium

Retained 

Earnings

Foreign 

currency 

translation 

reserve

Debenture 

redemption 

reserve

Total 

equity

Balance as at 1 April 2020    13,306,007    91,006,858    19,640,401     (38,373,666)        1,167,071    86,746,671 

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year

Profit for the year                  -                    -        1,372,596                    -                      -        1,372,596 

Other comprehensive income/(loss)                  -                    -             43,101        2,261,989                    -        2,305,090 

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year                  -                    -       1,415,697      2,261,989                    -       3,677,686 

Transfer from / (to) retained earnings                  -             82,238                    -              (82,238)                  -   

Balance as at 31 March 2021   13,306,007   91,006,858   21,138,336   (36,111,677)       1,084,833   90,424,357 

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 

 

 On behalf of Board of Directors 

 

 

 

 

  

 Yogendra Kr. Modi Prashant Modi 

 Executive Chairman 
Managing Director & 
Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

Place: Gurugram 

 

Place: Gurugram 

 Date: July 7, 2022 Date: July 7, 2022 
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Statement of cash flow

 31 March  31 March 

2022 2021

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 2,350,371         1,861,053        

Adjustments for:-

Finance cost 5,540,625         7,044,071        

Finance income (114,830)          (159,752)          

Net gain on financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss (246,414)          (456,695)          

Provisions/ liabilities no longer required written back -                  (18,360)           

Unrealised foreign exchange difference (net) (333,054)          778,422           

Loss/ (profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipments (64,365)            (6,564)             

Depletion, depreciation & amortisation 6,363,617         4,072,837        

Changes in:

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade and other receivables (149,568)          690,363           

(Increase) / Decrease in prepayments 16,354             6,916              

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade and other payables 338,851            6,437              

Cash generated from operating activities 13,701,587     13,818,728     

Income tax paid (888,254)          (169,192)          

Net cash from operating activities (A) 12,813,333     13,649,536     

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipments / capital work in progress/ 

intangible assets (65,255)            (807,063)          

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 193,557            15,680             

Purchases of liquid investments (mutual funds) (36,933,531)      (36,119,275)     

Proceeds from sale of liquid investments (mutual funds) 37,381,388       39,656,065       

Deposits made during the year (1,668,723)        (2,887,132)       

Deposits matured during the year 1,631,616         2,718,366        

Interest received 116,512            280,278           

Net cash from investing activities (B) 655,564          2,856,919      

C. Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from long term borrowings -                  3,878,480        

Repayment of long term borrowings (8,147,162)        (13,716,181)     

Interest paid (5,337,649)        (6,815,609)       

Net cash (used in) financing activities (C) (13,484,811)    (16,653,310)   

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (15,914)            (146,855)          

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 37,886             184,741           

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March (refer note 10) 21,972            37,886           

 For the year ended 



 
Great Eastern Energy Corporation Limited 

(All amounts in US dollars unless otherwise stated) 

 

7 

 

 

 
 

 

  Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities 

 

  
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Particulars  Long Term  Short Term  Long Term  Short Term 

As at April 1 59,353,148      1,224,490   66,543,520      1,193,792   

Cash flow (net) (8,147,162)      -            (9,837,701)      -            

Transaction costs impact 184,574          -            272,271          -            

Accrued Interest 22,706            -            24,980            -            

Exchange difference (2,020,133)      (37,312)      2,350,077       30,698       

As at March 31 49,393,133    1,187,178 59,353,148    1,224,490 

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

 31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 

 

 On behalf of Board of Directors 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 Yogendra Kr. Modi Prashant Modi 

 Executive Chairman 
Managing Director & 
Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

Place: Gurugram  

 

Place: Gurugram 

 Date: July 7, 2022 Date: July 7, 2022 
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1. Corporate Information 

 

Great Eastern Energy Corporation Limited ('GEECL' or 'the Company') is a Public Limited Company incorporated 

in India. Some of GEECL's shares are listed as Global Depository Receipts for trading on the London Stock Ex-

change Plc's Main Market.  

The Company was incorporated in 1992 to explore, develop, distribute and market Coal Bed Methane gas or 

CBM gas in India. GEECL originally entered into a license agreement in December 1993 with Coal India Limited 

(CIL) for exploration and development of CBM over an area of approximately 225 Sq. km (approximately 55,600 

acres) in the state of West Bengal (the block). 

The Contract for exploration & Production of CBM gas was signed on 31 May 2001 for an area of 210 Sq. km (ap-

proximately 52,000 acres) in Raniganj (South), West Bengal. The Petroleum Exploration License (PEL) was 

granted by the Government of West Bengal on 9 November, 2001. The Contract provides for a five year initial 

assessment and market development phase, followed by a five year development phase and then a twenty-five 

year production phase, extendable with the approval of the Government of India (GOI). 

Besides this, the Company was awarded with Mannargudi block located in Tamil Nadu under CBM IV round for 

which the Contract for exploration & Production of CBM gas was signed with the Government of India on 29 July 

2010. In this regard, two PEL had been granted to the Company on 13 September 2011 and 4 November 2011. 

The Environmental Clearance for the block was granted by the Ministry of Environment & Forest, Government 

of India on 12 September 2012 (also refer Note 29). 

 

The financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022 are available upon         

request from the Company’s registered office at M-10, ADDA Industrial Area, Asansol-713305, West Bengal,     

India, or at www.geecl.com. 

 

2. Significant accounting policies  

 

2.1 Basis of preparation 

 

a. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting    

Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB’).  

 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets 

and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments). 

 

b. Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary 

economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The functional currency of the 

Company is Indian Rupees (“Rs.” or “INR”). The financial statements are presented in US Dollar (US $), which is 

the Company's presentation currency, which the Company considers most appropriate for its investors being an 

overseas listed Company. 

 

c. The financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period. In addition, the 

Company presents an additional statement of financial position at the beginning of the earliest period     

presented when there is a retrospective application of an accounting policy, a retrospective restatement, or 

a reclassification of material items in financial statement. 
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d. The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022 have been prepared on a going 

concern basis. 

e. The Company does not have any subsidiary and accordingly, does not require any consolidated financial 

statements. Since the Company does not have any investments in associates and joint ventures also, hence 

these financial statements are standalone financial statements. 

The financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on  

July 7, 2022. 

 

2.2 Use of estimates and judgments  

 

Use of estimates 

 

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by 

definition, seldom be equal to the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk 

of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are 

discussed in the paragraphs that follow. 

 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are   

recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. 

 (i)  Gas reserves 

 

Reserves are those quantities of hydrocarbons anticipated to be commercially recoverable by application of            

development projects to known accumulations from a given date onwards under defined conditions. Reserves must 

further satisfy four criteria: they must be discovered, recoverable, commercial and remaining (as of the evaluation 

date) based on the development projects applied. Reserves are further categorized in accordance with the level of 

certainty associated with the estimates and may be sub-classified based on project maturity and/or characterized by 

development and production status. 

 

The reserves are estimated annually by the management based on internal best estimates or independent expert’s 

evaluation, as considered appropriate. 

 

Annual adjustments in reserves include changes in estimates, volume of produced gas as well as fresh discoveries 

made during the year. A reduction in the reserves would result in increased rate of depletion charge. 

 

Refer note 2.3 (f) for the Company’s policy in this regard. 

 

(ii)  Recoverability of deferred tax and other income tax assets 

 

The Company has carry forward unabsorbed depreciation and Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit that are available 

for offset against future taxable profit. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that 

taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses or tax credits can be utilized. This involves an as-

sessment of when those assets are likely to reverse, and a judgement as to whether or not there will be sufficient 

taxable profits available to offset the assets. This requires assumptions regarding future profitability, which is inher-

ently uncertain. To the extent assumptions regarding future profitability change, there can be an increase or decrease 

in the amounts recognised in respect of deferred tax assets and consequential impact in the statement of profit or 

loss. The details of deferred tax assets are set out in note 16. 
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(iii) Useful life and Impairment 

 

The management reviews the useful lives of the assets at the end of each year. The estimated useful lives are esti-

mated by the management based on technical estimates. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical obsoles-

cence and physical wear and tear that may change the useful life. 

 

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which 

is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation 

is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable 

market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. 

The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-

inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. 

 

(iv) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits) 

 

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using ac-

tuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual develop-

ments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. 

Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensi-

tive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans op-

erated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds where remaining maturity of such 

bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation. 

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at inter-

val in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future 

inflation rates. 

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 13. 

 

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies 

 

Except as described in note 2.4 below, the accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all 

the years presented in these financial statements. 

a) Current versus non-current classification 

 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-current 

classification. An asset is current when it is: 

 

 Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle. 

 Held primarily for the purpose of trading. 

 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period or 

 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period 

All other assets are classified as non-current: 

 

A liability is current when: 

 

 It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle 
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 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or 

 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the     

reporting period 

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

 
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and 
cash equivalents. The Company has identified 12 months as its operating cycle. 
 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

 

b) Fair value measurement 

 

The Company measures  financial instruments such as liquid Investments at fair value at each balance sheet 

date. Fair-value related disclosures for financial instruments and non-financial assets that are measured at fair 

value or where fair values are disclosed are summarised in note 3. 

 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly     

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the 

presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

 

•   In the principal market for the asset or liability; or 

•   In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

 

The principal or the most advantageous market is accessible by the Company. 

 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 

when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate 

economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant 

that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 

are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 

unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are             

categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is        

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

 

•  Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

• Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value          

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

• Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value         

measurement is unobservable 

 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the 

Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing           

categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at 

the end of each reporting period. 
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For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 

basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as 

explained above. 

 

c) Revenue recognition 

 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to 

the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in  ex-

change for those goods or services. The Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a 

promised good or service to a customer. The Company is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it 

controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer. The transfer of control of Coal Bed Me-

thane (‘CBM’) and Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) coincides with title passing to the customer and the customer 

taking physical possession.  

 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amount disclosed as revenue 

are inclusive of excise duty and net of returns, trade allowances, rebates. Amounts collected on behalf of third 

parties such as sales tax and value added tax (VAT) are excluded from revenue. 

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised 
goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. Performance obligations in 
respect of advance from customers (contract liabilities) expected to be materialize within one year. 

 
Income from minimum guarantee offtake is recognised on accrual basis as per contractual arrangements with 

customers. 

 

Contract balances  

 

Contract assets  

 

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If 

the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration 

or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration when that right is condi-

tional on Company's future performance. Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to ac-

counting policies on impairment of financial assets in section p) Financial instruments – initial recognition and 

subsequent measurement. 

 

Trade receivables  

 

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional is due from the customer (i.e., 

only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).  

 

Contract liabilities  

 

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has re-

ceived consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays considera-

tion before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the 

payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue 

when the Company performs under the contract. 
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Interest Income 

 

Interest income is recognized on an effective interest basis. Interest income is included under the head 

“Finance income” in the statement of profit or loss. 

 

 

d) Taxes 

 

Current income tax 

 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 

taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or            

substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable     

income. 

 

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity or in Statement of Other comprehensive in-

come (“OCI”) is recognised in equity or in OCI, respectively and not in the statement of profit or loss. Manage-

ment periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax 

regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will ac-

cept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax 

treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts 

better resolution of the treatment. 

 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off these and in-

tends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 

 

Deferred tax 

 

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets  

and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.   

 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except, when the deferred tax liabil-

ity arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business com-

bination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 

 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax   

credits and any unused tax losses except when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differ-

ence arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business  combination 

and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax 

assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the de-

ductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. 

   

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is 

no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to 

be utilised. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the  

extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the 

asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substan-
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tively enacted at the reporting date. 

 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside statement of 

profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or di-

rectly in equity.  

 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 

assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same       

taxation authority. 

 

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) 

 

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit or loss as current tax for the 

year. The deferred tax asset is recognised for MAT credit available only to the extent that it is probable that the 

concerned company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit 

is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the company recognizes MAT credit as an asset, it is created 

by way of credit to the statement of profit or loss and shown as part of deferred tax asset. The company reviews 

the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no 

longer probable that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.” 

 

 

e) Foreign currencies 

 

The Company’s financial statement are presented in US Dollar (US $) and the functional currency is Indian Rupees. 

 

Transactions and balances 

 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company in Indian rupees by applying the exchange 

rate prevailing at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. 

 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot 

rates of exchange at the reporting date. 

 

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in statement of profit or loss. 

 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the   

exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign    

currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss 

arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the 

gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or 

loss is recognised in statement of profit or loss or other comprehensive income are also recognised in statement of 

profit or loss or other comprehensive income, respectively). 

 

For the purpose of conversion from the functional currency to the presentation currency, the assets and liabilities, for 

each statement of financial position presented, are translated at the closing rate at the date of that statement of fi-

nancial position. Income and expense for each statement of profit or loss presented are converted using a rate 

approximately the rate on the date of transaction and all resulting exchange differences are recognized as a separate 

component of equity viz, foreign currency translation reserve. 

 

 



 
Great Eastern Energy Corporation Limited 

(All amounts in US dollars unless otherwise stated) 

 

15 

 

f) Property, plant and equipment 

 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 

losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly    

attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and       

rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. The present value of the expected cost for the                

decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria 

for a provision are met. Refer to significant accounting judgement, estimate and assumption (Note 2.2) and       

provisions (Note 2.3 (n)) for further information about the recognised decommissioning provision. 

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for  

as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.   

 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 

when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with them will flow to the Company and the cost of 

the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs 

and maintenance expenditures are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the financial year in which they 

are  incurred. When any major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant 

and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied and the carrying value of past such inspec-

tion costs are charged off in the statement of profit or loss. 

 

Capital work in progress/ intangible assets under development (including exploration and evaluation assets) 

 

The following costs with respect to oil and gas extraction activities, are treated as capital work-in-

progress/intangible assets under development when incurred: 

 

i. All acquisition costs; 

ii. All exploration costs; and 

iii. All development costs. 

All the costs other than the above are charged as expense when incurred. 

 

Depletion, depreciation and amortisation 

 

Depreciation (other than Gas producing properties) on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-

line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the management. The identified compo-

nents are depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset. 

The Company, based on technical estimates, has assessed the useful life of its property, plant and equipment’s as 

follows:- 

 

Useful lives estimated by the management (years)     

 

Office Equipment’s                                                                 5 

  Vehicles                                                                      8 

  Buildings 30 – 60   

Furniture & Fixture                                                               10 

  Pipeline                                                                              30 

  Plant & Machinery 

    -Cranes                                                                                 8 

  -Desktops, laptops, etc.                                                            3   



 
Great Eastern Energy Corporation Limited 

(All amounts in US dollars unless otherwise stated) 

 

16 

 

-Servers and networks                                                             6   

-Drilling equipments                                                                8 

  -Compressors/Cascades/Others                                     15 

  -Gas Gathering Station                                                            25 

  -Drilling Rigs                                                                          30 

  -Electric Installations                                                 10 

      

The Company has reassessed the economic useful life of all these assets excepts for Buildings and has restricted the 

same to the technical useful life or up to the end of the license period i.e. November 9, 2036, whichever is earlier. 

However, building constructed on freehold land continues to be depreciated over its technically assessed useful 

life. Freehold land is stated at cost net of accumulated impairment losses and is not depreciated. 

 

Gas producing properties is depleted according to the 'Unit of Production' method by reference to the ratio of    

production in the year to the related proved developed reserves. 

 

Proved developed reserves are estimated by the management based on internal best estimates or independent    

expert’s evaluation as considered appropriate using the Petroleum Resource Management system method. These 

estimates are reviewed at least annually. 

 

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon    

disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on   

derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 

amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. 

 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at 

each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

 

g) Intangible assets 

 
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets 

acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,   

intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.   

Internally generated intangibles, excluding Capitalised development costs, are not Capitalised and the related 

expenditure is reflected in statement of profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. The 

useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. 

 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment 

whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the 

amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each 

reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future       

economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as     

appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets 

with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the 

net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss 

when the asset is derecognised.  
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A summary of the policies applied to the Company's intangible assets is as follows: 

  -  Gas exploration rights are capitalized at historical costs. 

  - Computer software-costs associated with identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Company   

having probable economic benefits exceeding the costs beyond one year are recognized as intangible assets. These 

costs are amortized using the straight line method over their useful lives. 

Particulars Gas exploration rights and Other In-

tangible Assets 

Computer software 

Useful lives Finite Finite 

Amortisation method 

used 

Amortized on a straight line basis 

over the period of 25 years 

Amortized on a straight line basis over 

the period of 5 years 

Internally generated or 

acquired 

 

Acquired Acquired 

 

h) Leases 

 

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract 

conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

 

Company as a lessee 

 

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases 

and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use   

assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.  

 

Right-of-use assets 

 

The company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underly-

ing asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recog-

nised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease 

incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease 

term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows: 

 Leasehold land 25 to 99 years 

The depreciation charge is recognized in the statement of Profit or loss. Right-of-use assets are assessed for im-

pairment as per the accounting policy for impairment of non-financial assets (Note 2.3 (k)). 

 

Lease liabilities 

 

At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value 

of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-

substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index 

or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the 

exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties 

for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.  Variable lease 
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payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to pro-

duce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.   

 

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease 

commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the com-

mencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for 

the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modifi-

cation, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting 

from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an 

option to purchase the underlying asset. 

 

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

 

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that 

have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It 

also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are            

considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised 

as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

 

i) Government grants 

 
Government grants are recognized at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be       

received and all the conditions attached to it will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is 

recognized as income over the period necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is         

intended to compensate. Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are         

adjusted against the carrying amount of the related asset. 

   

j) Financial instruments 

 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 

instrument of another entity. 

 

Financial assets 

 

Initial recognition and measurement 

 

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through 

other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. 

 

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow       

characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do 

not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Com-

pany initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through 

profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which 

the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price as disclosed in section (c) Reve-

nue from contracts with customers. 

 

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give 

rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This 

assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that 
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are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. 

 

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or 

convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company 

commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

 

Subsequent measurement 

 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories: 

 

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) 

 

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and 

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and in-

terest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective inter-

est  (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 

or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of prof-

it or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

 

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (debt instruments) 

 

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) if both of the follow-

ing criteria are met: 

 

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial   

assets; and 

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. 

 

Debt instruments included within FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. 

Fair value movements are recognised in OCI. However, the Company recognises interest income, impairment losses and 

reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative 

gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit or loss. Interest earned 

whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method. The Company does not have 

any debt instrument as at FVTOCI. 

 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (debt instruments)  

 

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does 

not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 

 

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVTOCI 

criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recog-

nition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at 

FVTPL. 

 

Debt instruments included within FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the state-

ment of profit or loss. 
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Equity investments 

 

All  equity investments in scope of IFRS 9 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and 

contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies are classified as at 

fair value through profit or loss. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to 

present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an 

instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.  

 

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, ex-

cluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit or 

loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Divi-

dends are recognized as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been estab-

lished, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in 

which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to 

impairment assessment. 

 

Equity instruments included within FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the     

statement of profit or loss. 

 

 

(iii)  Impairment of financial assets 

 

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the Expected Credit Losses (“ECL”) associated with its assets 

carried at amortised cost and Fair value through comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) debt instruments. The im-

pairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Also refer 

note 3. 

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9 Financial Instru-

ments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables.  

 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a 

financial instrument. The 12‐month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that 

are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.  

 

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the 

contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the 

original effective interest rate (EIR). The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral 

held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.  

 

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfo-

lio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the ex-

pected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward‐looking estimates. At every reporting date, the 

historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward‐looking estimates are analyzed.  

 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as expense / income in 

the statement of profit or loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of 

profit or loss. The statement of financial position presentation for various financial instruments is described be-

low:  
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• Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: 

 

ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the statement 

of financial position. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write‐off criteria, 

the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.  

 

• Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: 

 

Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its 

value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the statement of Other        

Comprehensive income 

 

(iv)  Derecognition of financial assets 

 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of similar financial assets) is derecog-

nised when: 

 

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

 

• The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay 

the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and 

either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company 

has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred con-

trol of the asset. 

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-

through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When 

it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred con-

trol of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s con-

tinuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and 

the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has re-

tained. 

 

 

B. Financial liabilities 

 

(i) Initial recognition and measurement 

 

The Company’s financial liabilities consists of trade and other payables and loans and borrowings, which are rec-

ognized on the trade date when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

These are initially measured at fair value less any attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial measure-

ment, trade and other payables and borrowings are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 

(EIR) method and derivative financial instruments (not designated as hedges) are measured at fair value through 

statement of profit or loss. 

 

(a)  Trade and other payables 

 

Trade and other payables represent unpaid liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the 

end of financial year and are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after 
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the reporting period. These are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised 

cost using the effective interest method. 

 

(b)  Loans and Borrowings 

 

Loans and Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently 

measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption 

amount is recognized in the statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective in-

terest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to 

the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred 

until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility 

will be drawn down, the fee is considered as a prepayment and amortised over the period of the facility to which 

it relates. 

 

Loans and Borrowings are removed from the statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the 

contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability 

that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non‐cash as-

sets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as other gains/(losses). 

   

Loans and Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer 

settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. 

 

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or 

expire. 

 

Borrowing costs  

 

Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per effective interest rate (EIR) and exchange differences arising 

from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. 

 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily 

takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of 

the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.   

 

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 

qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.  

 

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of 

the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial as-

set or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company es-

timates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for exam-

ple: prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. 

 

(c)  Financial liabilities at fair value through statement of statement of profit or loss  

 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial li-

abilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classi-

fied as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also 

includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instru-
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ments in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for 

trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 

 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

(ii)  Derecognition of financial liabilities 

 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 

or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the 

derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective car-

rying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

 

C. Reclassification of financial assets 

 

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recog-

nition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For 

financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business 

model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s 

senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which 

are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the busi-

ness model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its op-

erations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclas-

sification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business 

model. The Company does not restate any previously recognized gains, losses (including impairment gains or 

losses) or interest. 

 

D. Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position 

where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on 

a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be 

contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of de-

fault, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty. 

 

k) Impairment of non- financial assets 

 

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If 

any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the    

asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of  

disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does 

not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When the 

carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written 

down to its recoverable amount. 

 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 

asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no 

such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. 

 

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculation. These budgets and 
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forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. A long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to 

project future cash flows after the fifth year. 

 

Impairment losses of operations are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

 

For tangible/intangible assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an 

indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication ex-

ists, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed 

only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the 

last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not ex-

ceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreci-

ation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the 

statement of profit or loss. 

 

 

l) Cash and cash equivalents 

 

Cash and cash equivalent in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-

term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount 

of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term depos-

its, as defined above.   

 

 

m) Employee benefit 

 

Defined contribution plans 

 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions   

into fund maintained by the Government of India and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further 

amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit     

expense in statement of profit or loss in the periods during which services are rendered by employees. Prepaid 

contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is 

available. 

 

State administered provident fund 

Under Indian law, employees are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which is a defined      

contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to the plan at a              

pre-determined rate (currently 12%) of the employee’s basic salary to a government recognised provident fund.  

The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.  The contributions are 

recognized as employee benefit expense when they accrue, i.e. when the services are rendered by the          

employees. Upon retirement or separation, an employee becomes entitled for this lump sum benefit, which is 

paid directly to the concerned employee by the fund. 

 

Defined benefit plans 

 

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s 

net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that 

employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The benefit is discounted to 
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determine its present value and reduced by the fair value of plan assets, if any. The discount rate is based on the 

prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the reporting date that have maturity dates        

approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations and that are denominated in the same currency in which 

the benefits are expected to be paid. 

 

The calculation is performed annually by an actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the            

calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic 

benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the 

plan. An economic benefit is available to the Company if it is realisable during the life of the plan, or on          

settlement of the plan liabilities. 

 

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan 

assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the assets ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized        

immediately in the Other  comprehensive income. The Company determines the net interest expense (income) 

on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the      

defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), 

taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of       

contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans 

are recognised in profit or loss. 

 

When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to past service by em-

ployees is recognised as expense immediately in the statement of profit or loss. 

 

Other long term employee benefits 

 

Benefits under the Company’s compensated absences constitute other long-term employee benefits. 

 

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that 

employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to 

determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The discount rate is based on 

the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the reporting date that have maturity dates 

approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations. The calculation is performed by an independent actuary 

using the projected unit credit method. Any actuarial gains or losses are recognised in the statement profit or 

loss in the period in which they arise. 

 

The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the statement of financial position, to the extent it does 

not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company 

has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the 

same is presented as non-current liability. 

 

Short-term benefits 

 

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related 

service is provided. 

 

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus if the Company has a 

present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee 

and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 
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n) Provisions 

 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 

event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the    

obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects 

some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is rec-

ognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a pro-

vision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement. 

 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 

reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the      

provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

 

Decommissioning/Site restoration liability 

 

The Company records a provision for decommissioning/ site restoration costs of facility for the extraction of gas. 

The initial costs are provided for at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated 

cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of the relevant asset. The cash flows are discounted at a cur-

rent pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to these liabilities. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as     

incurred and recognised in the statement of profit or loss as a finance cost. The   estimated future costs are re-

viewed    annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs, or in the discount rate 

applied, are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset. 

 

o) Contingent liabilities 

 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by 

the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or 

a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be        

required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a        

liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a 

contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. 

 

p) Exploration and evaluation expenditure 
 

Exploration and evaluation cost are related to each exploration license (‘block’ or ‘production sharing contract’ 

or ‘permit’) are initially Capitalised within ‘intangible under development’. Such exploration and evaluation cost 

may include costs of license acquisition, technical services and studies, seismic acquisition, exploration drilling 

testing, directly attributable overhead and administrative expenses, including remuneration of personnel and  

supervisory management, and the projected cost of retiring the assets (if any), but do not include general      

prospecting or evaluation cost incurred prior to having obtained the legal rights to explore an area, which are 

expensed directly to the statement of profit or loss as they are incurred. 

q) Earnings per share 

 

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calcu-

lated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average 

number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, 
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the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the Company and the weighted average 

number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity 

shares.  

 

2.4 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 

 
2.4.1 New and amended standards and interpretations 

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual peri-
ods beginning 1 April 2021 (unless otherwise stated) but do not have an impact on the financial statements of the 
Company. The Company has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been 
issued but is not yet effective.  
  
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 
 
The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an interbank of-
fered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (RFR). The amendments include 
the following practical expedients: 
 

 A practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly required 
by the reform, to be treated as changes to a floating interest rate, equivalent to a movement in a mar-
ket rate of interest  

 Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation 
without the hedging relationship being discontinued 

 Provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an 
RFR instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk component 

The amendment applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. These amendments 
had no impact on the financial statements. The Company intends to use the practical expedients in future        
periods if they become applicable 
 
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions Amendments to IFRS 16 
 

i) Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions – Amendment to IFRS 16 

 
On 28 May 2020, the International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB’) issued COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions 
-amendment to IFRS 16 Leases The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying IFRS 16 guidance on    
lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As 
a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor 
is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election accounts for any change in lease payments resulting 
from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same way it would account for the change under IFRS 16, if the 
change were not a lease modification. The amendment applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 
1 June 2020. Earlier application is permitted. 
 
 
ii) Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 – Amendment to IFRS 16 

The amendment, included in (i) above, was intended to apply until 30 June 2021, but as the impact of the 
Covid-19 pandemic is continuing, on 31 March 2021, the IASB extended the period of application of the practical 
expedient to 30 June 2022.The amendment applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 
2021 
 
The Company has not received Covid-19-related rent concessions, but plans to apply the practical expedient if it 
becomes applicable within allowed period of application. These amendments had no impact on the financial 
statements. 
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2.5 New standards and interpretations not yet adopted  
 
The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of    
issuance of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these new 
and amended standards and interpretations, if applicable, when they become effective. 

 
Standards not yet effective for the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 
2022 

Effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 
1 January, 2023 

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current - Amendments to IAS 1 1 January, 2023* 

Reference to the Conceptual Framework – Amendments to IFRS 3 1 January, 2022 

Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to IAS 8 1 January, 2023 

Onerous Contracts – Costs of Fulfilling a Contract – Amendments to IAS 37 1 January, 2022 

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use – Amendments to IAS 16 1 January, 2022 

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 1 January, 2023 

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – Fees in the ’10 per cent’ test for derecognition of finan-
cial liabilities 

1 January, 2022 

Amendments to IAS 12 - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a 
Single Transaction  

 

1 January, 2023 

IAS 41 Agriculture – Taxation in fair value measurements 1 January, 2022 

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards – Subsidiary as 
a first-time adopter 

1 January, 2022 

 
*In July 2021, the IASB tentatively decided to defer the effective date of the 2020 amendments to no earlier than 
1 January 2024 
 
The Company is evaluating the requirements of the standards, improvements and amendments and has not yet 
determined the impact on financial statements 
 
 

3      Financial risk management 

Overview 

 

The Company’s activities are exposed it to a variety of financial risks that arise as a result of its exploration,           

development and production of CBM and CNG and also financing activities. These are as under: 

 

a) Market risk 

b) Credit risk 

c) Liquidity risk 

d) Operational risk 



 
Great Eastern Energy Corporation Limited 

(All amounts in US dollars unless otherwise stated) 

 

29 

 

 

 

 

Risk management framework 

 

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s             

objectives; policies; and processes for measuring and managing such risks, and the Company’s management of   

capital. Further, quantitative disclosures are included through these financial statements, wherever considered 

appropriate. 

 

The Board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk       

management framework. The Board has established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for    

developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The Committee reports regularly to the 

Board of Directors on its activities. 

 

The Company has a risk management policy to address each type of identified risk. 

 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for reviewing and updating the risk profile, monitoring the effective-

ness of the risk management framework and reviewing at least annually the implementation of the risk manage-

ment policy and framework. 

 

The purpose of the Risk Management Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its corporate governance in 

overseeing the responsibilities with regard to the identification, evaluation and mitigation of operational, strate-

gic and external environment risks. 

The Committee has overall responsibility for monitoring and approving the risk policies and associated practices 

of the Company. The Risk Management Committee is also responsible for reviewing and approving risk disclosure 

statements in any public documents or disclosures. 

The Board of Directors approves the Risk Management Policy and associated frameworks, processes and practices 

of the Company. There are periodic reviews to update the policy by the Board of Directors on its own, or as    

recommended by the risk management committee. 

 

The Board reviews the performance of the Risk Management Committee annually. 

 

The Board of Directors oversees management’s establishment and execution of the Company’s risk management 

framework. The Company’s Risk management policies are to identify and analyse the risks faced by the        

Company, to set appropriate risk controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to market conditions and the 

Company’s activities. 

 

 

The Company has established policies covering all the financial risks, namely market risk, credit risk and liquidity 

risk. 

 

Significant accounting policies 

 

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the    

basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of    

financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in notes 2 to the financial statements. 
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a) Market risk 

 

Market risk is the risk that arises from changes in market prices, such as commodity prices, foreign exchange 

rates, interest rates and equity prices and will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of        

financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures 

within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. 

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk that arises mainly from debt. The Company is exposed to interest 

rate risk because the fair value of fixed rate borrowings and the cash flows associated with floating rate         

borrowings fluctuate with changes in interest rates. 

 

The Company is exposed to market risk with respect to change in foreign exchange rates. 

 

i) Currency risk:  

 

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises from foreign-currency denominated liabilities on account of 

purchase of services and materials from foreign contractors and suppliers and foreign currency denominated           

borrowings. The Company does not hold any financial assets denominated in any currency other than INR.  

 

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk was based on the following amounts as at the reporting dates 

(in equivalent US dollars): 

 

 
 

 

 

The following were the exchange rates against USD and EURO during the year: 

 

 
 

Financial liabilities USD Euro GBP

Trade and other payables       236,002                2,083              40,552 

Borrowings                -          16,998,397                     -   

     236,002      17,000,480             40,552 

Financial liabilities USD Euro GBP

Trade and other payables 194,179                     -   19,059

Borrowings                -   18,093,524                     -   

194,179 18,093,524 19,059

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

2022 2021 2022 2021

USD/INR            74.51          74.20                75.81                73.50 

EUR/INR            86.58 86.67                84.66 86.10

GBP/INR          101.79 97.06                99.55 100.95

Average rate for the year 

ended 31 March

Reporting date spot rate as at 

31 March
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Sensitivity analysis 

 

A strengthening / weakening of the USD, Euro and GBP, as indicated below, against the INR as at 31 March 2022 

and 31 March 2021 would have (decreased) / increased the profit after tax (using the tax rate applicable for the 

current year) by the amounts shown below (without considering any consequential impact). This analysis is based 

on foreign currency exchange rate variances that the Company considered to be reasonably possible at the end of 

the reporting period. The analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. 

 

 
  

Any change in the exchange rate of INR against currencies other than USD, Euro and GBP is not expected to have 

material impact on the Company’s profit or loss. 

 

ii) Interest rate risk 

 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates 

primarily to the Company's long-term borrowings obligations with floating interest rates. All the financial assets 

and financial liabilities of the Company are either interest-free or at a fixed rate of interest except for borrowings 

at various floating rates linked to prime lending rates of respective banks. The carrying value of  borrowings with 

floating interest rates as at 31 March 2022 is USD 41,449,588 (31 March 2021: 50,314,238). Accordingly, the Com-

pany is exposed to cash flows interest rate risk on its loans. 

 

The Company analyses its interest rate exposure regularly. Various scenarios are analysed taking into consideration 

such as refinancing, alternative financing, etc., based on these scenarios, the Company calculates the impact on 

profit or loss of a defined interest rate shift.  

 

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments and derivative financial instruments  

 

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial asset and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and 

the Company does not designate derivatives as hedging instruments, under fair value hedge accounting model.      

Therefore, change in interest rate at reporting date will not affect profit or loss. 

 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 

 

A change of 100 bps in interest rates as at the reporting dates would have decreased/ (increased) profit after tax 

(using the tax rate applicable for the current year) by the amounts shown below: 

 

2022 2021

5 percent strengthening of USD against INR               (8,364)               (6,882)

5 percent strengthening of EURO against INR           (672,832)           (751,160)

5 percent strengthening of GBP against INR               (1,887)                  (928)

5 percent weakening of USD against INR                8,364                6,882 

5 percent  weakening of EURO against INR             672,832             751,160 

5 percent  weakening of GBP against INR                1,887                   928 

For the year ended 31 March
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iii) Price risk: 

 

Commodity price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in 

commodity prices. Commodity prices for CBM and CNG gas are impacted by not only the relationship between INR 

and US dollars and international market prices, but also economic events that dictate the levels of supply and   

demand. 

 

The Company did not have any receivables or contracts as at year-end which had a provisional price which could 

be affected by fluctuations. 

 

b) Credit risk 

 

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. The   

Company makes advances to suppliers and vendors in the normal course of its business and generally requires bank 

guarantees from them against these advances. The Company also makes advances to employees and places securi-

ty deposits with related parties and restricted margin money deposits with banks. The majority of Company’s sale 

to its customer is on credit basis. In certain cases, customer provides bank guarantees against the sale made to 

them. These transactions expose the Company to credit risk on account of default by any of the counterparties. 

Credit risk is managed through credit approvals and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of counterpar-

ties. On that basis, and upon consideration of the fact that there has been no material history of defaults the 

Company does not estimate any provision on its outstanding trade receivables. 

 

As at 31 March 2022, the Company has 1 customer (31 March 2021: 1 customer) that accounts more than 50% of the 

trade receivables. 

 

The maximum amounts of exposures to credit risk as at the statement of financial position date is disclosed in the 

fair value estimation section of this note. 

 

The Company holds bank guarantees against trade receivables amounting to USD 330,401 (31 March 2021: USD 

165,279). The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by refer-

ence to external credit ratings (where available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates. As 

per the terms and condition of the agreement the Company has the right to encash bank guarantee in case of any 

default. 

 

As at 31 March 2022

100 bps 

increase

100 bps 

decrease

Indian rupee loan         164,309        (164,309)

Euro loan         134,536        (134,536)

As at 31 March 2021

100 bps 

increase

100 bps 

decrease

Indian rupee loan         212,852        (212,852)

Euro loan         150,216        (150,216)

Impact on profit or loss

Impact on profit or loss
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During the year, based on specific assessment, the Company recognized bad debts and advances amounting to USD 
Nil (31 March 2021: USD Nil). The year-end trade receivables do not include any amount with such parties. All 
trade receivables were not due on the statement of financial position date. 
 

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company in accordance with its 

policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned 

to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual 

basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company’s Finance Committee. The lim-

its are set to minimize the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through a counterparty’s po-

tential failure to make payments. 

 

 

 

c)  Liquidity Risk 

 

The Company’s liquidity risk management policy involves management of short-term, medium-term and long-term 

funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining, banking    

facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows and    

matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 

 

The Company’s Finance department is responsible for managing the short-term and long-term liquidity require-

ments of the Company. The liquidity position is reviewed on a regular basis by the Board of Directors and appro-

priate decisions are taken according to the situation. 

 

The Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses on a regular 

basis. To achieve this objective, the Company prepares annual capital expenditure budgets, which are regularly 

monitored and updated as considered necessary. The Company also attempts to match its payment cycle with col-

lection of gas revenue. 

 

The contractual maturity profile (including interest) of the Company’s obligations is as under: 

 

 
 

 

 

 

As at 31 March 2022
Transaction 

currency

Carrying 

amount

(USD)

Contractual 

maturities

Less than 1 

year

Between 1 and 

5 years

Over 

5 years
Total

Non -derivative financial 

liabilities

14% non-convertible redeemable 

debentures INR
         7,943,544         13,370,047        1,532,732        6,899,781        4,937,533         13,370,046 

Loans and Borrowings

Indian currency loan from banks 

and financial institutions
INR        22,552,036         34,070,741        5,365,918       17,420,364      11,284,459         34,070,741 

External Commercial Borrowing Euro        18,897,553         22,422,920        1,939,737       10,960,572        9,522,611         22,422,920 

Loan from Director INR          1,187,178          1,400,871        1,400,871                    -                      -             1,400,871 

Trade and other payable INR          3,257,087          3,257,087        3,257,087                    -                      -             3,257,087 

Total      53,837,398       74,521,666     13,496,345     35,280,717    25,744,603       74,521,665 
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The Company expects to generate sufficient sales volume in the coming year, due to increase in demand, which 

will help settle these liabilities. Also refer note 31. 

 

Capital risk management 

 

The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going     

concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for stakeholders. The Company also proposes to 

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.  Hence, the Company may adjust any dividend 

payments, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. Total capital is the equity as shown in the statement 

of financial position.  Currently, the Company primarily monitors its capital structure in terms of evaluating the 

funding of potential new investments. 

 

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is 

calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including ‘current and 

non-current borrowings’ as shown in the statement of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents, liquid in-

vestment, other bank balances and Deposits with NBFC Including the pledged against borrowing. Total capital is 

the equity and debt as shown in the statement of financial position. 

 

 
 

 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 

2022 and 2021 

As at 31 March 2021
Transaction 

currency

Carrying 

amount

(USD)

Contractual 

maturities

Less than 1 

year

Between 1 and 

5 years

Over 

5 years
Total

Non -derivative financial 

Liabilities

14% non-convertible redeemable 

debentures INR
         8,792,913         15,794,284        1,666,573        6,977,497        7,150,213         15,794,283 

Loans and Borrowings

Indian currency loan from banks 

and financial institutions
INR        29,457,698         45,770,049        9,403,658       19,817,089      16,549,302         45,770,049 

External Commercial Borrowing Euro        21,088,444         25,631,737        2,088,777       10,556,107      12,986,854         25,631,738 

Vehicle Loan INR              14,093               14,668             14,668                    -                      -                 14,668 

Loan from Director INR          1,224,490          1,444,898        1,444,898                    -                      -             1,444,898 

Trade and other payable INR          3,304,483          3,304,483        3,304,483                    -                      -             3,304,483 

Total      63,882,121       91,960,119     17,923,057     37,350,693    36,686,369       91,960,119 

As at 31 March 

2022

As at 31 March 

2021

Interest bearing loans and borrowings        50,580,311 60,577,638

Less: cash and cash equivalents              21,972                37,886 

Less: Other Bank balances pledged against 

borrowings
         1,391,702           1,410,886 

Less: Liquid investments          5,633,109           6,014,361 

Less: Deposits with Non banking finance companies 

(NBFC) pledged against borrowings
            437,228              470,631 

Net debt ( A)      43,096,300        52,643,874 

Total equity  (B)        88,963,124 90,424,357

Total capital (C=A+B)    132,059,424      143,068,231 

Capital Gearing Ratio(A/C)                 0.33                   0.37 
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Fair value estimation 

 

Fair Values 

 

Fair Values Carrying Amounts 

 

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial 

position, are as follow: 

 
 

Fair value hierarchy 

 

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are    

either observable or unobservable. The different levels are defined as follows: 

 

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities  

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 

directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices). 

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) 

 

Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost: 

 

Fair value of trade and other receivables, bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, Director’s loan, trade and 

other payables has been taken as their carrying amounts due to their short-term maturity. Fair value of long term 

debts is based on discounted cash flows, a level 3 valuation technique. 

 

 

 

Particulars

Carrying 

amount
Fair value

Carrying 

amount
Fair value

Financial assets Carried at fair value

Investments measured at FVTPL (measured using 

Level 1 valuation technique) 5,633,109    5,633,109    6,014,361      6,014,361     

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Trade and other receivables 1,451,404    1,451,404    1,347,102      1,347,102     

Deposits with banks( including restricted deposits) 1,640,107    1,640,107    1,654,037      1,654,037     

Cash and cash equivalents 21,972         21,972         37,886          37,886          

8,746,592  8,746,592  9,053,386    9,053,386   

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost

14% non-convertible redeemable debentures 7,943,544    7,954,427    8,792,913      8,806,608     

Indian currency loan from banks and financial institutions 22,552,036   23,201,588   29,457,698    30,285,299    

External Commercial Borrowing 18,897,553   18,982,777   21,088,444    21,195,271    

Trades and other payables 3,257,087    3,257,087    3,304,483      3,304,483     

Director Loan 1,187,178    1,187,178    1,224,490      1,224,490     

Vehicle Loan -             -             14,093          14,158          

53,837,398 54,583,057 63,882,121  64,830,309  

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
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d) Operational risk 

 

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the    

Company’s processes; personnel; technology; and infrastructure, and from external factors (other than credit; 

market; and liquidity risks) such as those arising from perspective of legal and regulatory requirements and gener-

ally accepted standards of corporate behavior. 

 

The Company’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and   

damage to the Company’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness. 

 

The Company has an Internal Control Framework which identifies key controls and supervision of operational      

efficiency of designed key controls. The framework is aimed to providing elaborate system of checks and balances 

based on self-assessment. This responsibility is supported by the development of overall Company standards for 

the management of operational risk in the following areas: 

 

- requirements of appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorization of  transactions; 

- requirements of reconciliation and monitoring of transactions; 

- compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements; 

- documentation of controls and procedures; 

- requirements of periodic assessment of adequacy of controls and procedures to address the risks identified; 

- requirements of reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action; 

- development of contingency plans; 

- training and professional development; 

- ethical and business standards; 

- risk mitigation, including insurance, where this is effective. 
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4.1  Property, plant and equipment 

 

 

 

 

Freehold 

land

Building Plant and 

machinery

Pipeline Gas producing 

properties

Furniture, 

fixture & 

office 

equipment

Vehicles Total

Carrying amount as at 1 April 2020, net of 

accumulated depreciation/ depletion
    626,765    2,566,040     12,889,952    13,874,921  105,519,118       57,420    340,498      135,874,714 

Additions during the year               -            22,081         1,122,359                   -                     -           11,848     167,553           1,323,841 

Disposals/ retirements               -                   -                (4,450)                   -                     -         (39,245)    (137,452)             (181,147)

Depreciation/ depletion charge for the year               -           (95,199)       (1,529,533)         (782,698)      (1,476,726)       (24,229)      (65,964)          (3,974,349)

Depreciation on retirement               -                   -                 4,169                   -                     -           37,283     130,579              172,031 

Exchange fluctuation         16,117          65,287            327,574           349,330        2,699,285          1,341         9,657           3,468,591 

As at 31 March 2021, net of accumulated 

depreciation/ depletion
    642,882    2,558,209     12,810,071    13,441,553  106,741,677       44,418    444,871      136,683,681 

Carrying amount as at 1 April 2021, net of 

accumulated depreciation/ depletion
      642,882     2,558,209       12,810,071      13,441,553    106,741,677         44,418     444,871        136,683,681 

Additions during the year               -                   -              193,891                   -                     -           21,066              -                214,957 

Disposals/ retirements               -           (48,627)       (1,082,461)             (2,483)                   -           (1,416)              -            (1,134,987)

Depreciation/ depletion charge for the year [refer 

2.3 (f)]
              -         (121,506)       (1,492,264)         (779,290)      (3,795,836)       (11,511)      (67,569)          (6,267,976)

Depreciation on retirement               -           (48,627)            954,962             (1,095)                   -            1,111              -                906,351 

Exchange fluctuation       (19,589)          21,387          (365,885)         (393,999)      (3,187,425)         (1,513)      (12,397)          (3,959,421)

As at 31 March 2022, net of accumulated 

depreciation/ depletion
    623,293    2,360,836     11,018,314    12,264,686    99,758,416       52,155    364,905      126,442,605 

As at 31 March 2021

Gross carrying amount       642,882     3,490,766       29,092,162      21,957,361    118,079,727       351,071     609,572        174,223,541 

Accumulated depreciation               -         (932,557)     (16,282,091)      (8,515,808)    (11,338,050)     (306,653)    (164,701)        (37,539,860)

Net Carrying amount     642,882    2,558,209     12,810,071    13,441,553  106,741,677       44,418    444,871      136,683,681 

As at 31 March 2022

Gross carrying amount       623,293     3,336,606       27,332,364      21,285,860    114,481,730       359,686     590,998        168,010,537 

Accumulated depreciation               -         (975,770)     (16,314,050)      (9,021,174)    (14,723,314)     (307,531)    (226,093)        (41,567,932)

Net carrying amount     623,293    2,360,836     11,018,314    12,264,686    99,758,416       52,155    364,905      126,442,605 
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Well capitalization 

 

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has capitalized Nil wells (31 March 2021: Nil). All  

exploration/development cost involved in drilling, cementing, fracturing and drilling of exploratory core 

holes are initially considered as wells in progress (included in capital work-in-progress) till the time these are 

ready for commercial use when they are transferred to producing properties. 

 

Depletion: Gas producing properties is depleted according to the 'Unit of Production' method by reference to 

the ratio of production in the year to the related proved developed reserves. Proved developed reserves are 

estimated by the management based on internal best estimates or independent expert’s evaluation as con-

sidered appropriate. These estimates are reviewed at least annually.  

 

As per accounting policies followed by the Company, gas producing properties are depleted according to the 
'Unit of Production' method by reference to the ratio of production in the year to the related proved devel-
oped reserves. 
  
During the year ended 31 March 2022, as a part of its annual exercise of review of estimates, the Company 

conducted a review of gas reserves available in relation to Gas producing properties by involving an inde-

pendent external expert. Based on the result of the review carried out, the Company has concluded that (1P) 

gas reserves available in relation to Gas producing properties are lower than its previous estimates. The 

downward revision in an estimate of gas reserves available in relation to Gas producing properties is due to 

cyclic lockdown continued over a period of two years due to multiple COVID waves. The company had choked 

the production and slowed the dewatering pumps to reduce gas production based on gas sales volume, re-

peated shut-ins, inefficient pumping issues due to cyclic chokes which resulted in (1P) volume being reduced. 

Consequently, the depletion in gas production properties has increased and during the year, increase in de-

pletion is USD 2,298,592. Considering that depletion of gas producing properties is based on unit of produc-

tion method which fluctuates basis actual production, the impact on depletion in future years would depend 

upon the actual production in respective year. Further, based on the management assessment there is no im-

pact on the Company’s ability to recover the entire carrying value of assets. 

 

 

Refer note 12 of security details. 
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4.2    Right-of-use Asset 

 

The Company has lease contracts for various items of leasehold lands, corporate office and equipment’s used 

in its operations. The Company has taken different pieces of land on lease on which the wells are being              

developed. The lease period for these pieces of land generally ranges from 25 to 99 years. The Company is 

required to pay the entire amount of consideration as lease premium upfront upon entering into agreement 

for acquisition of these pieces of land and no further periodic lease rentals are payable for use of these   

pieces of land. Generally, the Company is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets. 

 

 

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the      

period: 

 
 

Also Refer Note 28 for Leases and arrangements containing lease taken by the Company 

Refer Note 12 for Security Details 

Right of use 

(leashold 

land)

Carrying amount as at 1 April 2020, net 

of accumulated depreciation
   1,429,330 

Additions during the year              -   

Disposals/ retirements              -   

Depreciation charge for the year [refer 2.3 

(f)]
      (87,038)

Depreciation retirement              -   

Exchange fluctuation        35,925 

As at 31 March 2021, net of accumulated 

depreciation
 1,378,217 

Carrying amount as at 1 April 2021, net 

of accumulated depreciation
   1,378,217 

Additions during the year              -   

Disposals/ retirements              -   

Depreciation charge for the year [refer 2.3 

(f)]
      (86,676)

Depreciation retirement              -   

Exchange fluctuation       (40,509)

As at 31 March 2022, net of accumulated 

depreciation
 1,251,032 

As at 31 March 2021

Gross carrying amount    1,690,685 

Accumulated depreciation     (312,468)

Net carrying amount  1,378,217 

As at 31 March 2022

Gross carrying amount    1,690,685 

Accumulated depreciation     (439,653)

Net carrying amount  1,251,032 
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5 Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) (including Wells in progress) 

 

 
 

Note:- 

a. Management based on independent assessment of the wells in progress, is confident of putting the same 

 to commercial production. 

 

b. As at 31 March 2022, CWIP includes advances to capital equipment supply vendors amounting to USD 

63,483 (31 March 2021: USD 58,304) and capital inventory amounting to USD 3,563,322 (31 March 2021: 

3,848,682), balance amount of CWIP represents value of wells in progress. 

 

c. Refer note 12 for security details. 
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2022 2021

Opening balance         7,780,454      8,172,920 

Additions during the period                      -                     -   

Capitalisation/others            (162,823)         (596,942)

Effect of movement in foreign exchange rates            (234,286)          204,476 

Closing balance         7,383,345      7,780,454 

As at 31 March
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6 Intangible assets 

 
 

Refer note 12 for security details. 

*Refer note 29 of the financial statements. 

 

7 Prepayments 

 

 
 

 

Prepaid expenses include an amount of USD 35,339 (31 March 2021: USD 29,388) on account of rent paid in 

advance to a related party, YKM Holdings Private Limited (refer note 25). 

 

 

 

As at 1 April 2020, net of accumulated 

amortization
98,346 6,353 235 104,934

Additions during the year               -                -                -                 -   

Amortisation charge for the year         (8,086)         (3,122)           (240)        (11,448)

Exchange fluctuation           2,451             133                5           2,589 

As at 31 March 2021, net of accumulated 

amortization
92,711 3,364              -   96,075

Additions during the year               -                -                -                 -   

Amortisation charge for the year         (8,053)           (910)              -           (8,963)

Exchange fluctuation         (2,687)             (87)              -           (2,774)

As at 31 March 2022, net of accumulated 

amortization
81,971 2,367              -   84,338

As at 31 March 2021

Cost        191,837       226,220        79,349        497,406 

Accumulated amortization / write off        (99,126)     (222,856)       (79,349)      (401,331)

Net carrying amount 92,711 3,364              -   96,075

As at 31 March 2022

Cost        185,991       219,327        76,931        482,249 

Accumulated amortization / write off      (104,020)     (216,960)       (76,931)      (397,911)

Net carrying amount 81,971      2,367       -           84,338      

Total

Gas 

Exploration 

Right *

Computer 

Software

Other 

Intangibles

2022 2021

Non-financial assets

Prepaid expenses 169,703 191,616

169,703 191,616

Less: Non current portion

 - Prepaid expenses 66,093 80,397

Total non-current portion 66,093 80,397

Current portion 103,610 111,219

As at 31 March
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8 Trade and other receivables 

 

 
 

Notes: 

a. Trade receivables are interest bearing post the normal credit period of 3 to 15 days. Post credit period, 

interest is charged @ 15% p.a. 
b. See note 3 (b) on credit risk of trade receivables, which explains how the Company manages and measures 

credit quality of trade receivable that are neither past due nor impaired. 

c. The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets. 

d. The trade receivables do not comprise of any balances more than 6 months. 

e. Refer note 12 for security details. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

2022 2021

Financial assets

Trade receivables 896,978           745,962         

Receivable towards minimum gurantee offtake 5,969              11,713           

Unbilled revenue 3,178              -                

Receivable from related parties (refer note 25) 35,339             29,388           

Advances to employees 2,902              3,710             

Security deposits 30,720             29,752           

Interest receivable 24,250             26,717           

Deposits with Non Banking Finance Companies (NBFCs) 437,228           470,631         

Other receivable 14,840             29,229           

(A) 1,451,404      1,347,102     

Non-financial assets

Amount deposited with Government agencies under protest 65,954             68,027           

(B) 65,954            68,027          

Total trade and other receivables                                                           (A+B)1,517,358      1,415,129     

Less: Non current portion:

Receivable from related parties (refer note 25) 35,339             29,388           

Advances to employees -                  1,261             

Security deposits 30,720             29,752           

Amount deposited with Government agencies under protest 65,954             68,027           

Other receivable 14,840             15,306           

Total non-current portion 146,853          143,734        

Current portion 1,370,505      1,271,395     

As at 31 March
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9a    Liquid investments 

 

 
 

9b    Restricted deposits with banks  

 

 
 

All the restricted fixed deposits are denominated in INR. 

 

These fixed deposits earn fixed interest at the respective bank deposit rates. These are margin money 

against debenture redemption, security release by bank and against bank guarantee issued by bank on   

behalf of the Company. Restrictions on such deposits are released on the expiry of terms of respective          

arrangements. 

 

 

10 Cash and cash equivalents 

 
 

a. Cash at banks is non-interest bearing. 

b. Deposits earn fixed interest at the respective bank deposit rates. 

c. The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are representative of their fair values as at the    

respective statement of financial position dates. The same has been considered as cash and cash equiva-

2022 2021

Investments

Investment carried at fair value through profit or loss

Investment in mutual funds - Quoted

ICICI Prudential Money market fund - Direct plan - Growth 

- 1,391,365 (31 March 2021: 923,673) units of market value USD 4.05 

each (31 March 2021: USD 4.02 each)

        5,632,514      3,710,757 

SBI Saving Fund- Direct plan- Growth 1,250 (31 March 2021: 4,951,315) 

units of maket value USD 0.47 (31 March 2021: USD 0.47)
                  586      2,303,594 

ICICI Prudential liquid fund - Daily dividend

- 7.188 (31 March 2021: 7.188) units of market value USD 1.32 each 

(31 March 2021: USD 1.36 each)

                      9                 10 

       5,633,109    6,014,361 

As at 31 March

Financial assets 2022 2021

 Fixed deposits held as margin money 1,640,107 1,654,037

Non-current portion -                   -                

Current portion 1,640,107 1,654,037

As at 31 March

2022 2021

Financial assets

 Cash in hand 128                 123                  

 Cash at banks 21,844            37,763             

21,972           37,886            

As at 31 March
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lent for the purpose of the statement of cash flows. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equiva-

lents are all denominated in INR. 

11 Issued capital and reserves 

 

 Share capital 

 

 
 

The Company has only one class of equity shares, having a par value of Rs.10 per share (USD 0.22). Each 

shareholder is eligible to one vote per share held. The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors 

is subject to approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim 

dividend. The repayment of equity share capital in the event of liquidation and buy back of shares are  

possible subject to prevalent regulations. In the event of liquidation, normally the equity shareholders are 

eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in 

proportion to their shareholding. 

 

43,193,995 equity shares (72.52% of total number of equity shares) represent 86,387,990 Global Depository 

Receipts (GDR) [31 March 2021: 43,193,995 equity shares (72.52% of total number of equity shares) repre-

sent 86,387,990 GDRs]. 2 GDRs are equivalent to 1 fully paid equity share of Rs. 10 (USD 0.22) each. The 

individual GDR holder do not have direct right to either attend the shareholder’s meeting or vote therein. 

They are represented by the depository who represents the GDR holders at shareholder’s meetings and 

vote on their behalf. 

 

Nature and purpose of reserves 

 

Securities premium 

 

Securities premium represents the premium paid by the shareholders on issue of shares and net of equity 

transaction cost. Under the Indian Companies Act 2013, such a reserve has a restricted use like issuance of  

bonus shares, etc. 

 

Debenture redemption reserve 

 

Debenture redemption reserve represents the reserve created for the redemption of debentures issued 

during the financial year 2013-14. Under the Indian Companies Act 2013, such a reserve has a restricted 

use until the redemption of debentures and necessary additions are made basis maturity profile of the        

debentures. 

 

 

2022 2021

Authorised shares

70,000,000 (31 March 2021: 70,000,000 ordinary shares of INR 

10 (equivalent to USD 0.22) each
15,857,418 15,857,418

15,857,418 15,857,418

Shares issued, subscribed and fully paid

59,561,950 (31 March 2021: 59,561,950 ordinary shares of INR 

10 (equivalent to USD 0.22) each
13,306,007 13,306,007

13,306,007 13,306,007

As at 31 March
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Retained Earning 

 

Retained earnings are the profits/(loss) that the Company has earned/incurred till date, less any transfers 

to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. Retained earnings includes re-

measurement loss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement 

of Profit or Loss. Retained earnings is a free reserve available to the Company and eligible for distribution 

to shareholders 

 

Foreign currency translation reserve 

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of these    

financial statements from functional currency to presentation currency 

 

 

12 Interest bearing loans and borrowings (including accrued interest) 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Financial liabilities 2022 2021

Non-current

14% non-convertible redeemable debentures           7,506,662 8,342,301

Indian currency loan from banks and financial institutions         19,611,086 23,352,664

External commercial borrowing         17,672,705 19,803,464

Total non-current 44,790,453 51,498,429

Current

Current maturities

14% non-convertible redeemable debentures              436,882          450,612 

Indian currency loan from banks and financial institutions           2,940,950       6,105,034 

External commercial borrowing           1,224,848       1,284,980 

Vehicle loan                       -              14,093 

Total (A) 4,602,680           7,854,719       

Short-term borrowings

Directors loan           1,187,178       1,224,490 

Total (B)         1,187,178      1,224,490 

Total current (A+B) 5,789,858 9,079,209

As at 31 March



 
Great Eastern Energy Corporation Limited 

(All amounts in US dollars unless otherwise stated) 

 

46 

 

 

 

Details of effective interest rates of loans and borrowings are given below:-  

 

Category of loan Currency Maturity As at 31 

March 2022 

As at 31 

March 2021 

Non-Convertible redeemable debentures [refer (a) 

below] 

INR 

 

31-Dec-29 14.28% 14.28% 

External commercial borrowing [refer (b) below] Euro 31-Mar-30 Margin 4.372% 

+ 6 month  

Euribor 

Margin 4.372% 

+ 6 month  

Euribor 

Indian rupee loan [refer (c) below] INR 31-Mar-30 Respective 

bank base rate 

+ 3%, 2.5%, 

2.55%, approx-

imately 

11.50% 

Respective 

bank base 

rate + 3%, 

2.5%, 2.55%, 

approximately 

11.50% 

Indian rupee loan [refer (d) below] INR 31-Mar-22 Base rate + 

3.55% 

Base rate + 

3.55% 

Indian rupee loan [refer (e) below] INR 08-Apr-21 - 13.40% 

Indian rupee loan [refer (f) below] INR 31-Mar-23 Bank base rate 

+ 3.20% 

Bank base 

rate + 3.20% 

Indian rupee loan [refer (g) below] INR 31-May-21 - 15.35% 

Indian rupee loan [refer (h) below] INR 15-Nov-26 13.65% 13.65% 

Vehicle loan [refer (i) below] INR 10-Mar-22 - 8.79% 

  

  

(a) 14% non-convertible redeemable debentures of USD 13,191 (Rs. 1,000,000) each, redeemable at face val-

ue, were allotted during the year ended 31 March 2014. 

 

The debentures are secured by way of pari-passu charge created as under: 

  

i) First ranking mortgage and charge over all the immovable and movable properties of the Company, both 

present and future, including without limitation, the land pertaining to the CBM Project save all          

immoveable properties of the Company situated at Mouza Ishwarpura, Taluka Kadi, District Mehsana,     

Gujarat; 

 

ii) First charge by way of hypothecation over all movable assets in relation to the CBM Project including, 

without limitation plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, both present and future 

related to the CBM Project; 

 

iii) First ranking charge over the Participating Interest of the Company under the Product Sharing Contract 

(“PSC”); 

 

iv) Assignment of (a) all the Project Documents in relation to the Contract Area or the intended CBM Project 

at Raniganj Block, (b) all rights, titles, interests, benefits, claims, whatsoever of the Company, in all    

Project Documents, Insurances, Clearances and all interests of the Company relating to the CBM Project 

including without limitation any letter of credit, guarantee or performance bond provided by any party 
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under the Project Documents and all rights, titles, interests, benefits, claims, whatsoever of the Issuer on 

the PSC; 

 

v) First charge on all book debts, operating cash flows, commissions, all revenues, receivables and other   

current assets of the Company from or in relation to the CBM Project of whatsoever nature and whenever 

arising, both present and future, tangible and intangible assets, including, without limitation any know 

how rights, patents and the goodwill, related to the CBM Project, both present and future; and 

 

vi) First charge on all the Company’s bank accounts including, without limitation, project capex account, Trust 
and Retention Account and the Accounts to be established by the Company in consultation with the lenders 
and the Debenture Trustee and each of the other accounts required to be created by the Company in      
accordance with the Finance Documents and under any project document or contract and all moneys lying 
therein and/or to be credited therein. 

 
 

(b) During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Company had been sanctioned External Commercial Borrowings 

(‘ECB’) facility of EUR 36.50 million from ICICI Bank Ltd., Bahrain. Out of the sanctioned facility, the    

Company had drawn EUR 22.10 million on 29 December 2010, EUR 10 million on 7 July 2011 and Euro 4.40 

million on 19 April 2012. 

 

The Company has hypothecated the following assets as security by way of a first charge in favour of the 

lender: 

 

i) All rights, titles, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the borrower, in, to, under and/or in 

respect of the project documents and the clearances (both of the above hereinafter referred to as the    

“Contracts”) whether now executed/ received or hereafter executed/ received and delivered, including 

without limitation, the right to compel performance thereunder, and to substitute, or to be substituted for, 

the borrower thereunder, and to commence and conduct either in the name of the borrower or in its own 

name or otherwise any proceedings against any person in respect of any breach of, the contracts and,         

including without limitation, rights and benefits to all amounts owing to, or received or recovered by, the 

borrower and all claims thereunder and all other claims of the borrower under or in any proceedings against 

all or any such persons and together with the right to further assign any of the contracts (collectively, the 

 “ First Hypothecated Properties”); 

 

ii)  All and singular the moveable properties, accounts, plant and machinery, all other tangible moveable assets 

(both present and future) and in particular including, without limitation, all moveable plant and machinery 

(whether attached or otherwise), hardware, computer software, interface software, wiring, electronics 

spares, machinery spares, tools, meters, telephones, motor vehicles, accessories and all other equipment, 

whether installed or not and whether lying loose or in cases or which are lying or are stored in or to be 

stored in or to be stored in or to be brought upon the project site or into any of the borrower’s premises, 

warehouses, stockyards and godowns or those of the borrower’s agents, affiliates,  

associates or representatives or at various work sites, or at any place or places wherever else situated or 

wherever else the same may be whether now belonging to or that may at any time during the continuance of 

this deed belong to the borrower and/or that may at present or hereafter be held by any party anywhere to 

the order and disposition of the borrower or in the course of transit or delivery and all replacements,      

conversions, realization or otherwise howsoever together with all benefits, rights, and all incidentals at-

tached thereto which are now or shall at any time hereafter be owned by the borrower and the uncalled   

capital, intellectual property/ intellectual property rights, goodwill, permitted investments, and all the  

other investments, rights, title and interest in the undertakings of the borrower and all rights, title interest, 

property, claims, and demand, whatsoever of the borrower up to and upon the same whether presently in 

existence, constructed or acquired hereafter (collectively, the second “ Second Hypothecated Properties”); 
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iii) All amounts, revenues, receipts and other receivables owing to, and received by, the Company from      

whosoever person, all rights, titles, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Company in, 

to or in respect of all amounts owing to and received by, the Company from whomsoever person, including 

any amounts received by the Company under contract guarantees, performance bonds, letter of credit or 

receivables from the shareholders of the Company or otherwise, which description shall include all       

properties of the above description, including the accounts in which such amounts are held (including the 

Project Accounts), whether presently in existence or acquired hereafter, but excluding the Distribution    

Account (collectively the "Third Hypothecated Properties"); 

 

iv) All amounts, revenues, receipts owing to/receivable and/or received by, the Company in relation to the 

Project or otherwise and all rights, titles, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the    Com-

pany in to or in respect of all amounts owing to/receivable and/or received by, the Company, both present 

and future, which description shall include all properties of the above description whether presently in ex-

istence or acquired hereafter (collectively, the "Fourth Hypothecated Properties"); and 

 

v)  All the other moveable assets of the Company both present and future including the Distribution Account 

[other than the property effectively charged pursuant to the provisions of Sub-clause (i) through (iv) above], 

(collectively the “General Assets") provided that the charge created over the General Assets shall rank as a 

floating charge and shall not hinder the Company from dealing with the same or any part thereof in the    

ordinary course of its business in accordance with the terms of the Financing Documents and free of liens in 

each case unless the dealings have been restricted in accordance with the terms or its Deed or otherwise or 

the charge gets converted into a fixed charge and subject to and only as expressly permitted by the         

Financing Documents. The Company shall not, without the prior written consent of the lender, create or   

attempt to create any mortgage, charge, lien, pledge or hypothecation upon the General Assets. 

 

The security interest created by the Company in favour of the lender on the hypothecated property by the 

deed rank pari passu with the security interest created/ to be created in favour of existing lenders and  

parallel lenders. 

 

(c) During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Company had been sanctioned Rupee Term Loan Facility        

equivalent to USD 32,318,873 (Rs. 2,450,000,000) from consortium of banks. The Company has drawn USD 

31,476,763 (Rs. 2,386,162,091). As per the credit arrangement letter, the facility shall be secured by first 

ranking charge/ hypothecation/ mortgage/ assignment/ pledge/ security/ interest on the following, related 

to the project: 

 

i) All the immovable properties (including leasehold rights in case of leasehold land) and assets of the         

borrower, present and future, in relation to the CBM project and all immoveable properties of the borrower      

situated at Mouza Ishwarpura, Talukda Kadi, District Mehsana, Gujarat; 

 

ii)  All the borrower's movable properties and assets (including intangible assets) in relation to the CBM project, 

present and future, including but not limited to plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools, spares,      

accessories and current assets; 

 

iii) All book debts, operating cash flows, receivables, commissions, revenues of whatsoever nature and      

wherever arising of the borrower and all intangibles, goodwill, uncalled capital of the borrower, present 

and future, relating to the CBM project; 

 

iv) All accounts of the borrower wherever maintained, present and future, including but not limited to the 

Trust and Retention Account together with all accounts/ sub-accounts thereof, including Debt Service     
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Reserve Account; and 

 

v)  All rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the borrower, present and future, in, 

to and in respect of the project documents including (but not limited to) all insurance contracts, clearances 

and CBM contract(s), and any letters of credit, guarantees or performance bonds provided by any party to 

any project documents in favour of the Borrower and all benefits incidental thereto. 

 

The aforesaid security will rank pari passu with the security interest created/ to be created in favour of 

participating lenders. 

 

(d) Secured Indian Rupee loan equivalent to USD 7,914,826 (Rs. 600,000,000). This is fully paid and closed in 

March 2022.  

 

(e) Unsecured Indian Rupee loan. This is fully paid and closed in April 2021..  

 

(f) Secured Indian Rupee loan of USD 6,595,688 (Rs. 500,000,000) is repayable in 25 quarterly installments  

commencing from 31 March 2017. As per the credit arrangement letter, the facility shall be secured by first 

ranking charge/ hypothecation/ mortgage/ assignment/ pledge/ security/ interest on the following, related 

to the project: 

 

i) All the current assets of the borrower in favour of bank on pari passu basis to the CBM project without     

limitation non-convertible debenture holder of the borrower; 

 

ii) All the immovable properties of the borrower in favour of bank on pari passu basis to the CBM project   

without limitation non-convertible debenture holder of the borrower; 

 

iii) All the participating interest and projects documents under the contract for exploration of CBM with       

Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas, Government of India in favour of bank on pari passu basis without 

limitation non-convertible debenture holder of the borrower; and  

 
iv) First charge on fixed deposit amounting to USD 32,978 (Rs. 2,500,000). 

 

(g) During the financial year 2016-2017, the Company had been sanctioned Rupee Term Loan Facility equivalent 

to USD 6,595,688 (Rs. 500,000,000). The Company has drawn USD 5,276,551 (Rs. 400,000,000). This is fully 

paid and closed in May 2021.  

 

(h) Unsecured Indian Rupee loan is secured by first charge by way of mortgage of plot owned by YKM Holdings 

Private Limited and situated at Shivaji Marg, Rangpuri, New Delhi. 

 

(i) Vehicle loan is secured by way of hypothecation of specific vehicle. This loan is fully paid and closed in 

March 2022. 

 

(j) The Company has availed an unsecured loan from directors carrying an interest of 18% p.a. and payable     

monthly. The loan is repayable on demand. 
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13 Employee benefit liabilities 

 
 

 

 

The following tables summarize the components of gratuity expense recognised in the statement of profit 

or loss and the other comprehensive income and the amounts recognised in the statement of financial position 

for the respective plans. 

 

 
 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: 

 

 
 

Gratuity is an unfunded obligation and accordingly disclosures with respect to the plan assets are not     

applicable. 

2022 2021

Gratuity payable (defined benefit plan) 835,304      684,997      

Compensated leave absences 678,328      622,165      

1,513,632  1,307,162  

Less: Non current portion 732,618      581,338      

Current portion 781,014     725,824     

As at 31 March

2022 2021

Current service cost           67,722              54,079 

          48,912              45,422 

Remeasurements (gains) / losses recognised in the year           76,196             (60,808)

       192,830             38,693 

Charged to the statement of profit or loss          116,634              99,501 

          76,196             (60,808)

       192,830             38,693 

 For the year ended 31 March 

Charged to other comprehensive income

Interest cost on benefit obligations

2022 2021

Opening defined benefit          684,997            654,886 

Current service cost           67,722              54,079 

Interest cost           48,912              45,422 

- financial assumptions           66,956             (26,234)

- demographic assumptions                  -                   (228)

- experience adjustment             9,240             (34,346)

Exchange fluctuation          (23,625)              10,395 

Benefits paid          (18,898)             (18,977)

Closing defined benefit obligation        835,304           684,997 

Remeasurements (gains)/ losses arising 

from

 For the year ended 31 March 
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The principal actuarial assumptions used for gratuity were as follows: 

 

 As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021  

Particulars    

Salary growth 7.00% 6.00%  

Inflation factor 7.00% 6.00%  

Discount rate 7.34% 6.96%  

Mortality rates have been taken as per IALM Ultimate 

2012-2014 

IALM Ultimate 

2012-2014 
 

Retirement age 65 years 65 years  

 

 

The Actuarial valuation is carried out annually by an independent actuary. The discount rate used for      

determining the present value of obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by reference to 

market yields at the end of the reporting period on Indian Government Bonds. The currency and the term of 

the Government Bonds are consistent with the currency and term of the defined benefit obligation. 

 

The salary growth rate takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factor on long 

term basis. 

 

Sensitivity analysis 

 

A quantitative sensitivity analysis of the changes in the defined benefit obligation due to changes in signifi-

cant assumptions are shown below: 

 

 
 

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions 

constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. 

When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the 

same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit 

method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liabil-

ity recognized in the statement of financial position. 

 

The method and types of assumptions used in the preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change com-

pared to the prior period. 

 

As at 31 March 2022

1% increase 1% decrease

Discount rate (103,885)        125,039         

Future salary growth 123,520         (104,515)        

Withdrawal rate (606)               423                

As at 31 March 2021

1% increase 1% decrease

Discount rate (83,156)          100,534         

Future salary growth 99,919           (84,087)          

Withdrawal rate 596                (394)               
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Risk exposure 

 

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of 

which are detailed below: 

 

Changes in bond yields: A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities. 

 

Salary Growth : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation. 

 

Inflation risks: In the gratuity plans, the gratuity payment are not linked to inflation, so this is a less       

material risk. 

 

Life expectancy: The gratuity plan obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so         

increases in life expectancy will result in an increase in the plans' liabilities. This is particularly significant 

where inflationary increases result in higher sensitivity to changes in life expectancy. 

 

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation: 

 

 
 

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 22 Years 

(2021: 21 years). 

 

Compensated absences plan 

 

The liability for the compensated absences plan is USD 678,328 (31 March 2021: USD 622,165). During the 

year, USD 85,611 (31 March 2021: USD 20,289) has been charged/(credited) to statement of profit or loss on 

account of the compensated absences plan. 

 

Other employee benefit contribution plan: 

 

Defined contribution plans - Provident fund  

 

The liability for provident fund payable is USD 38,274 (31 March 2021: USD 4,718). The Company contributed 

USD 229,950 (31 March 2021: USD 218,374) to the Provident fund which has been charged to statement of 

profit or loss. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Year 2022 2021

Within the next 12 months 103,074 104,302

Between 2 and 5 years 38,626 30,871

More than 5 years 2,561,358 1,957,217

Total     2,703,058        2,092,390 

 As at 31 March 
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14 Trade and other payables 

 

 
 

 

 

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities: 

 Trade payable and other liabilities are non-interest bearing and repayable within 60 days. 

 Security deposits have been received from contractors and are repayable on demand and do not carry    

interest. 

 Employee benefit liabilities are payable over the next 0-180 days and without interest. 

 

15 Provisions 

Movement in provision for site restoration 

 

 
 

 

A provision for restoring the land back to its originality is created by way of site restoration costs, on a well 

by well basis. Such expenses are provided when the wells have been drilled substantially. These are        

expected to be incurred when the Company has commercially exploited the proved reserves of the well or 

when a well which has been drilled, has been declared as dead. 

2022 2021

Financial liabilities

Trade payables for goods and services 2,331,257      2,336,682       

Payable to related parties (refer note 25) 464,322         522,483          

Employee benefit liability 236,988         214,357          

Security deposits 224,057         230,454          

Other liabilities 463                507                

                                                                                                (A) 3,257,087     3,304,483     

Non-financial liabilities

Statutory dues 309,508         219,663          

Advances from customers 116,799         121,607          

                                                                                                (B) 426,307        341,270        

Current portion                                                                     (A+B) 3,683,394     3,645,753     

As at 31 March

2022 2021

Opening balance 275,543      266,923  

Addition during the year 3,122           -          

Effect of discounting 14,230         1,740      

Effect of movement in foreign exchange rates (8,693)          6,880      

Closing balance 284,202      275,543  

Less: Non current portion 284,202        275,543   

Current portion -              -          

As at 31 March



 
Great Eastern Energy Corporation Limited 

(All amounts in US dollars unless otherwise stated) 

 

54 

 

 

Since there have been no additional drillings in the current year, management is not expecting any material 

change to the gross undiscounted decommissioning liability. 

 

16 Deferred income taxes 

 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset     

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same    

authority. 

 

 

 

The break-up of deferred tax assets and liabilities is as follows: 

 

 
 

The gross movement on deferred income tax account is as follows: 

 

 
 

*Unabsorbed depreciation does not have any specific life for adjustment in current taxation law, further 

Company do not have any carry forward tax losses. 

**Addition to Minimum alternate tax (MAT) in current year includes USD 7,084 paid under Vivad Se Vishwas 
Scheme, 2020 for Assessment Year  2016-17. 
 

Additions / reversals during the year in deferred tax assets and liabilities have been recognized in the 

statement of profit or loss except for a (income)/charge of USD (22,188) (previous year charge of USD 

17,707) on employee benefits which has been recorded in other comprehensive income. 

MAT assets represents tax paid to the Indian government which are allowed to be set off against regular 

tax liabilities in future years. The period of origination and carry forward are as below: 

 

2022 2021

Deferred  tax liabilities:

22,282,705         22,429,339         

Deferred  tax assets:

Deferred tax assets (22,752,392)        (23,477,364)       

Deferred tax (Assets)/liabilities (net) (469,687)            (1,048,025)        

 As at 31 March 

Deferred tax liabilities

Particulars
Employee 

benefits

Unabsorbed 

depreciation*
Others

Minimum 

alternate tax 

(MAT)**

Total

At 1 April 2020   364,020    11,893,812   96,317    9,653,016  22,007,165 

       7,196          707,829         507        186,362         901,894 

       9,429          312,582     (3,699)        249,995         568,307 

  380,645    12,914,223   93,125  10,089,373  23,477,366 

      72,974         (490,544)      5,053        402,752          (9,765)

    (12,850)         (385,096)     (2,924)       (314,339)       (715,209)

  440,769    12,038,583   95,254  10,177,786  22,752,392 At 31 March 2022

At 31 March 2021

Deferred tax assets

Additions/(reversals) during the year

Exchange differences

Additions/(reversals) during the year 

Exchange differences
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Amounts in USD Year of origination Available for utilization till 

421,412 2012-13 2027-28 

2,863,770 2013-14 2028-29 

2,271,451 2014-15 2029-30 

205,574 2015-16 2030-31 

391,962 2017-18 2032-33 

2,533,513 

918,816 
182,404 
388,883 

2018-19 

2019-20 
2020-21 
2021-22 

2033-34 

2034-35 

2035-36 

2036-37 

10,177,785   

 

The Company basis its current gas reserve estimates and business plan is hopeful of realising the same in 

the available carry forward period, considering the significant time gap between the expected time of      

utilisation and the permissible carry forward period. The Company does not have any unrecognised deferred 

tax assets. 

 

The tax expense in the statement of profit or loss for the year differs from the standard tax rate of corpo-

rate tax in India. further the reconciliation between tax (expense) income and the product of accounting 

profit (loss) multiplied by India’s standard corporate tax rate of 29.12% (31 March 2021: 29.12%) is as fol-

lows: 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2022 2021

            2,350,371            1,861,052 

             (684,428)             (541,938)

             (208,037)               156,888 

               (59,140)               (42,161)

                 (5,908)               (61,246)

Tax (charge)             (957,513)            (488,456)

For the year ended 31 March

Tax credit/ (expense) at domestic tax rate

Tax effects of:

- Non-deductible expenses

Profit before tax:

- 'Income tax for earlier years

- Effect of evaluation of deferred tax balances in 

future years

2022 2021

             (395,668)             (186,362)

                 (5,908)               (61,246)

             (555,937)             (240,848)

(957,513)            (488,456)           

Income tax expense

Current tax expense

Deferred tax expenses

For the year ended 31 March

Income tax for earlier years



 
Great Eastern Energy Corporation Limited 

(All amounts in US dollars unless otherwise stated) 

 

56 

 

17 Other income          

 
 

* Claims received includes the amount received from insurance companies against insurance policies and 

vendors on settlement of disputes. 

 

 

18 Employee benefit expenses 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

--------------------------This space has been intentionally left blank-------------------- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2022 2021

Provisions/liabilities no longer required written back -                  18,360         

Claims received* 162,714          -              

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 64,365            6,564          

Miscellaneous income 27,778            140,068       

Net gain on financial instruments measured at fair value through 

profit or loss
246,414          456,695       

501,271            621,687         

For the year ended 31 March

2022 2021

Wages and salaries 3,855,354    3,558,310     

Defined contribution plans (refer note 13) 241,204       229,147        

Provision for gratuity (refer note 13) 116,635       99,501          

Staff Welfare 6,258           7,411           

4,219,451   3,894,369   

For the year ended 31 March
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19 Other expenses 

 

 
 

 

 

20 Finance income 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

2022 2021

Stores and spares consumed 575,681         780,357         

Workover expenses 267,008         283,136         

Audit fees 101,806         109,730         

Electricity charges 15,223          15,732          

Repairs and maintenance 1,245,741      1,263,386      

Insurance 128,866         139,248         

Rent (refer note 28) 190,658         169,821         

Rates and taxes 97,788          36,365          

Postage, printing and stationery 3,878            8,087            

Telephone charges 54,939          65,323          

Travelling and conveyance 545,563         158,404         

Consultancy charges 290,790         309,398         

Fee and legal charges 668,126         531,656         

Sitting fees/ commission paid to non-executive directors (refer note 25) 52,261          62,817          

Hire charges 464,610         423,422         

Security expenses 2,023,172      2,028,149      

Selling and distribution expenses 19,004          88,450          

Royalty 1,666,855      1,589,146      

Production level payment 416,714         397,287         

Conference and subscription 22,908          22,195          

Excise duty on sales (refer note 27) 2,416            106,749         

Donation to political parties 67,105          -                

Miscellaneous expenses 179,403         169,791         

9,100,515    8,758,649    

For the year ended 31 March

2022 2021

Interest on bank deposit              81,869        149,715 

Interest from others              32,961          10,036 

          114,830       159,752 

For the year ended 31 March
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21 Finance cost  

 

 
 

22 Earnings per share (EPS) 

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity 

holders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 

 

The following table reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted income EPS                

computation. 

 

 
 

23 Contingent Liabilities 

 

Based on a review of the legal position, the management believes that it is possible but not probable, that 

the demands mentioned below will arise and accordingly no provision for any liability has been made in 

these financial statements. 

 

(i) Petroleum and Natural Gas Regulatory Board (“PNGRB”) issued notice to the Company on 3 December 

2010 to stop incremental activity of laying pipeline in Durgapur area. The Company objected to 

PNGRB’s notice and challenged the jurisdiction of PNGRB on this matter. PNGRB passed an Order 

against the Company of USD 131,914 (Rs. 10,000,000) (31 March 2021: USD 136,054) and a penalty of 

USD 2,638 (Rs. 200,000) (31 March 2021: USD 2,721) per day. 

 

The Company challenged the same in Delhi High Court and the Court directed PNGRB not to take any 

coercive action against the Company. It further directed that the Company shall continue to supply the 

gas as of today through existing pipeline. The writ petition is currently pending in the Delhi High Court 

for final hearing. The Company believes that the it has a strong case in its favour. 

 

(ii) One of the Contractor, D.S. Steel had filed a suit against the Company before the Civil Judge, Asansol 

for recovery of USD 105,712 (Rs. 8,013,685) (31 March 2021: USD 109,030) along with interest till reali-

zation for non-payment of bills for developing wells and enabling drilling to extract methane gas from 

certain sites. The Court passed the judgement in favour of the Contractor on 22 December 2015 of USD 

2022 2021

Interest            5,526,395    7,042,331 

Unwinding of discount on site restoration cost                14,230          1,740 

Bank charges                27,926        33,209 

         5,568,551 7,077,280

For the year ended 31 March

2022 2021

Profit after tax attributable to equity share holders for the year 1,392,858        1,372,596         

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic and diluted earnings 

per share
59,561,950      59,561,950       

Face value of share (INR) 10                    10                    

Basic and diluted earnings per share (USD) 0.02                 0.02                 

For the year ended 31 March
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78,023 (Rs. 5,914,685) (31 March 2021: USD 80,472) along with interest from the date of filing the suit 

till realization of the claim. The Company has preferred the appeal before the Hon'ble High Court of 

Calcutta which is pending before the Hon'ble Court. The Company is of the strong view of being suc-

cessful in the matter. 

 

(iii) Jakson Limited had initiated arbitration against the Company claiming USD 137,109 (Rs. 10,393,826) 

(31 March 2021: USD 141,413) along with interest towards unpaid sale price for Gas Generator sets     

supplied. The Company has disputed the claim of the vendor and has filed its counter claim of         

USD 1,143,757 (Rs. 86,704,936) (31 March 2021: USD 15,778,032) against the vendor seeking damages, 

refund of advance paid and recovery of losses caused by various acts and omissions of vendor in         

relation to the contract terms. The matter is at the stage of arguments before the Arbitration Tribunal. 

The Company is of the strong view that it will be able to recover its claims. 

 
(iv) Goel Constructions (India) Limited (“Goel”) was awarded a construction contract by the Company. As 

per the terms of the Contract, Goel was required to complete the entire work within the time frame 

specified in the work order but Goel was not able to do so even after the extension was granted and 

additional payment made. 

 

Goel Construction initiated arbitration proceedings claiming of USD 372,755 (Rs. 28,257,466) (31 March 

2021: USD 384,455) along with interest. The Company filed counter claim of USD 78,484 (Rs. 5,949,623) 

(31 March 2021: USD 80,947). The Arbitration is at argument stage before the Arbitration Tribunal. The 

Company is of the strong view that it will be able to recover its claims. 

 
(v) M/s Sopan Projects (“Sopan”) filed a statement of claim for goods and services provided to the      

Company for USD 1,077,953 (Rs. 81,716,509) (31 March 2021: USD 1,111,789) plus interest in GGS 

(North) matter before the Arbitration Tribunal. The Company filed its counter claim of USD 16,441,483 

(Rs. 1,246,381,155) (31 March 2021: USD 16,957,567) against Sopan for deficiency in services. The Arbi-

trator has passed an award dated November 10, 2017 in the GGS (North) matter against the Company 

of USD 185,175 (Rs. 14,037,569) (31 March 2021: USD 190,987) plus interest. Aggrieved by the said 

Award, the Company filed a petition in the Delhi High Court to set aside the award. Sopan had also 

filed a petition to set aside the said award before the Delhi High Court to allow the rest of the claims 

which were disallowed. 

 

In August 2016, Sopan had filed two separate claim petitions before the Arbitration Tribunal of         

USD 1,984,650 (Rs. 150,450,546) (31 March 2021: USD 2,046,946) plus interest and USD 243,191        

(Rs. 18,435,619) (31 March 2021: USD 250,825) plus interest for GGS (South) and MDPE Pipelines mat-

ters respectively. The Company has filed Counter Claims to the tune of USD 5,546,591                      

(Rs. 420,471,015) (31 March 2021: USD 5,720,694) plus interest and USD 1,122,480 (Rs. 85,091,970)     

(31 March 2021: USD 1,157,714) plus interest respectively. In respect of MDPE pipeline matter the Tri-

bunal has reserved the award. The Company is of the strong view that it will be able to recover its 

claims. 

 

In South GGS matter the Tribunal has passed the award on March 25, 2022 and the sole Arbitrator has 

allowed the claims of Sopan Projects with interest to the tune of USD 1,647,314 (Rs. 124,878,071)     

(31 March 2021: NIL) and the counter claims of the Company were rejected. Being aggrieved the mat-

ter has been preferred before the High Court of Delhi by the Company u/s 34 of the Arbitration and 

Conciliation Act, 1996 seeking setting aside of the said award. The matter has been admitted by the 

Hon’ble Court. The Hon’ble Court has also granted interim protection by staying the operation of the 

award. The Company is contesting the matter and objecting to the award and seeking for the same to 
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be set-aside. The Company believes that the likelihood of any liability that may arise is not probable. 

Accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial statements. 

 

(vi) Directorate General of Hydrocarbons (”DGH”) has demanded additional Production Level Payment 

(”PLP”) of USD 1,507,928 (Rs. 114,311,686) (31 March 2021: USD 1,555,261) for the financial years from 

2007-08 to 2016-17. The contention of DGH was that the Company has not obtained any approval for 

claiming deduction toward compression and transportation. The Company has obtained price approval 

from MoPNG as per the provisions of the CBM contract. The Company believes that none of the clauses 

of CBM contract dated 31 May 2001 makes it mandatory on the Company to seek any further approval 

before claiming any deductions from any entity/authority. The Company has clarified the position to 

DGH. 

 
(vii) (a) Excise Department had issued various Show Cause notices / demand levying excise duty on certain 

sales for the period from July 2011 to Dec 2020. The Joint Commissioner (Commissionerate, CGST – 

Bolpur) has raised 4 Demand Orders against 14 SCNs to the Company for USD 1,238,350 (Rs. 93,875,750) 

(31 March 2021: USD 1,277,221)  & imposed penalty USD 315,398 (Rs. 23,909,394) (31 March 2021: USD 

Nil)  and an additional penalty of USD 76,510 (Rs. 5,800,000) (31 March 2021: USD Nil)  on the Execu-

tive Chairman, which were received by the Company on May 2, 2022. 

 
The Company has preferred appeals against the aforestated orders. The Company has made the manda-

tory pre-deposit upon which the consequential proceedings have been stayed. There are favourable or-

ders in the Company’s own case where the standpoint of the Company has been validated at Commis-

sioner level as well by Hon’ble CESTAT. The Company is of the strong view that no liability shall arise. 

 
(b) The Company has received show cause notice / demand levying service tax on payment of Royalty 

& Production level payment amounting to USD 354,544 (Rs. 26,876,983) (31 March 2021: USD 365,673) 

from April 2016 to June 2017. The Company is of the view that no liability shall arise. The Company has 

also filed writ petition before Calcutta High Court to quash the demand raised by the Department. 

 

(viii) Apergy Artificial has invoked arbitration to claim a sum of USD 155,669 (Rs 11,800,778) (31 March 2021: 

USD 160,555) along with interest for recovery of dues on account of  ‘progressing cavity’ pumps sup-

plied by them to the Company that were found to be of poor efficiency. The Company has filed a coun-

ter claim amounting USD 11,211,150 (Rs. 849,884,746/-) (31 March 2021: USD 11,563,060) along with 

interest for the loss incurred due to poor efficiency of the pumps. The arguments concluded in the 

matter and the Tribunal has reserved the award. The Company is of the strong view that it would able 

to recover its claim. 

 

(ix) In respect of the assessment year 2014-15, the TDS Officer (Income-tax) had passed an assessment or-

der under section 201(1)/201(1A) of the Income Tax Act and had made a tax demand amounting to USD 

35,129 (Rs. 2,663,021) (31 March 2021: USD 36,232).  The Company had filed an appeal with the Com-

missioner of Income Tax (Appeals), which is pending. 

 

(x) The Company has other claims amounting to USD NIL (Rs. NIL) (31 March 2021: USD 7,354).  
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24       Capital and other commitments: 

 
 

 

25   Related party disclosures 

 

a) Related parties where control exists: 

 

 

b) The following tables provide the total amount of transactions which have been entered into with related      

parties during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 

executed on capital account and not provided for:

 - For land 12,965               13,373             

 - For others 72,510               21,603             

85,475              34,976            

As at

a) Relationship with related parties

Related parties where control exists:

The Company is controlled by Mr. Yogendra Kr. Modi & Mr. Prashant Modi who are also the Company's ultimate controlling parties.

Other related parties with whom transaction have taken place during the year and the nature of related party relationship:

·    Mr. Yogendra  Kr. Modi - Executive Chairman

·    Mr. Prashant Modi - Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

·    Mr. G.S Talwar - Independent Director

·    Mr. S. Sundareshan - Independent Director

·    Mr. Sushil Kumar Roongta - Independent Director

·    Ms. Prarthana Modi (daughter of Mr. Yogendra Kr. Modi)

·    YKM Holdings Private Limited

Key managerial personnel and their relatives

Entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or

significantly influenced by, or for which

significant voting power in such entity resides

with, directly or indirectly, any individual or close

family member of such individual referred above.

Related Party Nature of transaction For the year ended 31 March

2022 2021

YKM Holdings Private Limited Lease rentals 169,712       151,485            

Reimbursement of expenses 69,403         29,314              

Security deposit paid 6,967          -                   

Advance rent paid 6,967          -                   
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c) Compensation paid / accrued to key management personnel and their relatives 

 

 
 

- In addition to above payments, the Company has also paid USD 16,629 (31 March 2021: USD 15,108) as sitting fees 

to the non-executive directors for attending various meetings and the same are included in ‘other expenses’ in 

the statement of profit or loss(refer note 19).  

 

- Remuneration does not include provision made for gratuity and leave encashment as they are determined for 

the company as a whole 

 

 Also refer note 12 with respect to guarantee given by Mr. Yogendra Kr. Modi and Mr. Prashant Modi and other 

charges created on the assets/ cash flows of YKM Holdings Private Limited for the loan taken by the Company 

and are outstanding at the year end and note 12 (j) for terms of borrowings obtained from them. 

 

d)    The following tables provide the total amount outstanding with related parties: 

 

 
 

*Amounts recoverable from YKM Holdings Private Limited consists of USD 35,339 (31 March 2021: USD 29,388) 

on account of security deposits paid for property taken on lease, recoverable on expiry of lease agreement    

(refer note 8) and USD 35,339 (31 March 2021: USD 29,388) on account of advance rent paid, adjustable against 

future occupation of property taken on lease (refer note 7). Amount payable to Mr. Yogendra Kr. Modi and Mr. 

Prashant Modi includes outstanding borrowings payable by the Company of USD 923,361 (31 March 2021: USD 

952,381) and USD 263,817 (31 March 2021: USD 272,109) respectively.  

 

e) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 

 

Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended 31 March 

2022, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (31 

March 2021: USD Nil). This assessment is undertaken on a forward-looking basis at each reporting period end 

through examining the historical information and financial position of the related party that is adjusted to reflect 

current conditions of market in which the related party operates. 

For the year ended  31 March 

2022 2021

Short term employee benefits     1,248,714 1,253,913

Defined contribution plan          99,852             100,270 

Commission          35,633               47,709 

Consultancy charges            3,355                 3,369 

Interest Paid        217,420             218,329 

   1,604,974         1,623,590 

Receivable Payable Receivable Payable

YKM Holdings Private Limited (refer notes 7, 8)*          70,678                    -            58,776                      -   

Mr. Yogendra  Kr. Modi (refer note 12,14)                 -           1,112,897                 -            1,186,469 

Mr. Prashant Modi (refer note 12,14)                 -              538,604                 -               577,817 

Ms. Prarthana Modi                 -                    247                 -                      262 

70,678       1,651,748      58,776        1,764,548        

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
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26  Segment reporting 

 

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company takes decision in respect of allocation of          

resources and assesses the performance basis the report/ information provided by functional heads and are 

thus considered to be Chief Operating Decision Maker. 

Based on the Company's business model, extraction and sale of CBM / CNG gas have been considered as a sin-

gle business segment for the purpose of making decision on allocation of resources and assessing its perfor-

mance. Accordingly, there are no separate reportable segments in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 

8 ‘Operating segment’ and hence, there are no additional disclosures to be provided other than those already 

provided in the financial statements. 

 

The entire sale has been made to external customers domiciled in India. Revenue of approximately USD 

21,858,594 (31 March 2021: USD 16,933,774) is from 2 customer (31 March 2021: 1) customers. No other cus-

tomer contributes to 10% or more of the total sales. 

       

All of the non-current assets other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets are located in India. 

 

 

27 Revenue 

 

The details of revenue during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 are as follows: 

 

 
 

Revenue from Operations

 31 March 

2022

 31 March 

2021

Sale of products (including excise duty)

- Coal bed methane gas 26,520,105        24,653,056        

- Compressed natural gas 19,671               869,245             

26,539,776      25,522,301      

Other operating revenue

- Minimum guarantee income 122,207             156,071             

Total other operating revenue 122,207            156,071            

Revenue from operations 26,661,983      25,678,372      

The details of gas sold by the Company:

 31 March 

2022

 31 March 

2021

 SCM*  SCM* 

Coal bed methane 84,285,724        79,773,686        

Compressed natural gas 30,000               1,535,631          

84,315,724      81,309,317      

* SCM represents Standard Cubic Meter



 
Great Eastern Energy Corporation Limited 

(All amounts in US dollars unless otherwise stated) 

 

64 

 

Sale of products includes excise duty collected from customers of USD 2,416 (31 March 2021: USD 106,749). 

The revenue related to sale of gas is recorded at point in time. 

 

Other operating revenue represents minimum guarantee income charged from the customers when they are 

unable to lift the minimum contracted quantities. These revenues are recorded at point in time. Also refer 

note 30 (i). For details of trade and other receivables related to revenue, refer note 8. 

 

During the year, besides normal losses and line pack amounting to 9.34 million scm (31 March 2021: 12.11 

million scm) of gas, the Company flared 0.13 million scm (31 March 2021: 0.15 million scm) of gas. This has 

been reported to the Director General of Hydrocarbons. 

 

 
 

 

28 Leases and arrangements containing lease 

 

The Company enters equipment lease and other arrangements with various contractors for development of 

its wells, whereby the specific assets leased by the contractors are used only at the Company's well devel-

opment site and such arrangements convey the right to use the assets. These leasing arrangement ranges up 

to 12 months. All the lease agreements are cancellable and renewable on mutual consent of parties as per 

mutually agreeable terms and do not contain any non-cancellable period. 

 

These arrangements include non-lease elements also and are being treated as well development costs along 

with other costs. The segregation of the lease and non-lease elements under the arrangements is not possi-

ble. 

 

The Company’s leasing arrangements are in respect for premises, equipment and site office/store yard. 

These leasing arrangement ranges from 12 months to 3 years. All the lease agreements are cancellable and 

renewable on mutual consent of parties as per mutually agreeable terms and do not contain any non-

cancellable period. 

 

The company also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of corporate office is 

cancellable in nature by either party by notice period mentioned in agreement. All the lease agreements 

are cancellable and renewable on mutual consent of parties as per mutually agreeable terms and do not 

contain any non-cancellable period. 

 

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemptions for above leases. 

 

Lease rentals accrued during the year for the premises, equipment and site office/store yard amounting to 

USD 190,658 (previous year USD 169,821) have been charged to the Statement of profit or loss (refer note 

19). 

Contract balances

 As at 31 March 

2022 

 As at 31 

March 2021 
 1st April 2020 

Trade receivables 896,978            745,962          712,859          

Receivable towards minimum 

gurantee offtake
5,969                11,713            2,148             

Unbilled revenue 3,178                -                 1,210             

Contract liabilities 30,440              38,800            55,674            
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There are no amounts payable toward variable and low value lease payments recognised for the year ended 

31 March 2021 and 31 March 2022. 

 

29 Exploration asset 

The Company had entered into a Contract for exploration and production of Coal Bed Methane gas (‘Con-

tract’) with the Government of India (GOI) on 29 July 2010, for carrying out CBM activities in Mannurgudi, 

Tamil Nadu. The Government of Tamil Nadu on the recommendations of the GOI granted Petroleum Explo-

ration Licenses (PELs) to the Company for the entire block of 667 Sq. km. The Environmental Clearance for 

the block was also granted by the Ministry of Environment & Forest, Government of India. Thereafter, a dis-

pute was raised by another party with regard to overlapping/unhindered access to the Company for the en-

tire contractual area. 

 

The Company referred the matter before an Arbitral Tribunal, where it is currently pending. 

 

Since substantial time had elapsed, the Company during an earlier year had written off the expenditure in-

curred on the said block as no benefits are expected of it. As per legal advice obtained, writing off this 

amount will have no effect on the ongoing Arbitration. 

 

30    Other litigations 

 

(i)  The Company had entered into a Gas Sale and Purchase Agreement ("GSPA") with Matix Fertilizers & 

Chemicals Limited ("Matix") in July 2017 which was valid till 31 August 2018. The Contract included a 

Minimum Guarantee Offtake ("MGO") by Matix and required the customer to deposit an interest free se-

curity amount of  USD 3,096,465  (Rs. 234,734,032) in cash and to issue two Bank Guarantees ("BGs") for 

a total of USD 5,925,434 (Rs. 449,190,000) [each Bank Guarantee of USD 2,962,717 (Rs.224,595,000)] in 

favour of the Company. Matix paid the security deposit but did not submit the BGs as per the terms of 

the GSPA. Matix was also obligated under the contract to purchase a minimum of 240,000 scm gas per 

day during the contract period. However, Matix defaulted in payment of the Invoices as per the GSPA 

and declared a shutdown of its plant in November 2017 without adhering to the terms of the GSPA. 

 

As per the GSPA, the Company had raised the claim of USD 19,542,628 (Rs. 1,481,469,991) [USD 

18,070,148 (Rs. 1,369,845,518) towards MGO and USD 1,472,480 (Rs. 111,624,473) towards interest up to 

August 30, 2018] plus further interest till realisation after adjusting the security deposit of USD 

3,096,465 (Rs. 234,734,032). Matix had also filed a claim against the Company for an amount of USD 

79,107,815 (Rs. 5,996,934,032) along with interest towards loss of profit due to non-operation of its 

plant, which in the opinion of the Company is without merit. The dispute had been referred to Arbitra-

tion and the award has been reserved for pronouncement after conclusion of final arguments by both 

sides. The Company basis external legal opinion believes that it has a strong probability of its claim be-

ing upheld before the arbitral panel. During an earlier year, the Company had recognized revenue only 

to the extent of monies received from Matix as there is significant counter party credit risk with respect 

to receivables from Matix considering their current financial condition. 

 

(ii) SRMB Srijan Limited (”SRMB”) was one of the customers of the Company and the Gas Sale Purchase 

Agreement (“GSPA”) was signed between the parties in 2011 which was valid till 30 April 2034. In 2014, 

a dispute arose between the parties with regard to the commercial terms of the GSPA and the Company 

had initiated arbitration proceedings. 
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Subsequent to the year end , the Hon’ble Tribunal has given the award on 21st June 2022 in favour of 

the Company and has directed SRMB to pay to the Company USD 7,717,256 (Rs. 58,50,45,169) together 

with interest at the rate of 7% from February, 2015, till the date of the Award, within a period of 12 

weeks from the date of the Award. Further, SRMB counter claim was rejected by the Tribunal. 

 

 

31   Impact of Code on Social Security, 2020 

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-

employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020 and subsequently the Code has also 

been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has 

not been notified and the final rules/ interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess 

the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the 

Code becomes effective. 

 

    32    Subsequent Events 

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through 07 July 2022, which is the date when the finan-

cial statements were authorised for issuance. There are no events that would require any material ad-

justments or disclosures in these financial statements. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 
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